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Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting dated February 6, 2025. 

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 30 read with Schedule III ofSEB] (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , this is to inform that the 
Board of Directors of REC Limited ("REC" I "the Company") in its meeting held on 
February 6, 2025, inter-alia considered and approved the following(s): 

I. Integrated Unaudited financial results (Standalone and Consolidated) of the 
Company for the quarter and period ended December 31, 2024, which have been 
reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in their meetings held on February 6, 2025. The said financial results have 
been subjected to Limited Review by Mis. Kailash Chand Jain & Co. and M is . SCV 
& Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company. A copy of Financial Results and 
Limited Review Report thereof, are enclosed herewith as Annexure-1 . 

2. Special Purpose Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the period 
ended December 31 , 2024, which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meetings held on 
February 6, 2025. The same has been prepared for the purpose of inclusion of financial 
information for upda tion of Global Medium Term Note (GMTN) programme of the 
Company and its Holding Company. The said financial statements have been 
subjected to Review by Mis. Kailash Chand Jain & Co. and Mis. SCV & Co., LLP, 
Statutory Auditors of the Company. A copy of Special Purpose Financial Statements 
and Review Report thereof, are enclosed herewith as Annexure-2. 

3. Declaration of3" interim dividend @ f4.30/- (Rupees Four and Paise Thirty only) 
per equity share of~ I OI- each for the financial year 2024-25. Further, the record date 
for the said interim dividend is Friday, February 14, 2025 and the said interim 
dividend shall be paid/ dispatched on or before March 6, 2025 to those shareholders, 
whose names appear (i) as beneficial owners in the statement(s) furnished by the 

RegionalOffices: Bengaluru. Bhopal , Bhubaneswar, Channai, Oehradun, Guwahati, Hyderabad, Jaipur, Jammu, Kolk<ita 

Lucknow, Mumbai. Panchkula, Patna, Raipur, Ranchi, Shillong, Shimla, Thiruvananthapuram & Vijaywada 

State Offices : Vadodara, Varanasl 

Training Centre : REC Institute of Power Management & Training (RECIPMT), Hyderabad 



depository(ies) as on the close of business hours on February 14, 2025 in respect of 
shares held in electronic form; and (ii) as members in the register of members on 
February 14, 2025 in respect of physical shares. 

It isfurther informed that as per the provisions a/the Income Tax Act, 1961, dividend income is 
taxable in the hands a/shareholders and the Company is required to deduct tax at source (TDS) 
at the time of making payment of dividend, at the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 
/961. In view of the same and in continuation of our earlier intimations dated June 18, 2024, 
July 27, 2024 and October 26, 2024, it is once again reiterated that in case a shareholder desires 
that his! her tax should be deducted at lower rates or no tax should be deducted, then h e/she is 
required to submit scanned copy of PAN. form /SG/ ISH & other requisite documents for the 
financial year 2024-25, on or before February 14, 2025, unless already submitted, through e­
mail at virenderS@alankit.com with a copy marked to reciv@alankit.com. No 
communication on the tax determination/ deduction of tax at lower rates shall be entertained 
after February 14, 2025. 

4. Formation of Joint Venture between REC Power Development and Consultancy 
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of REC) and Mahagenco Renewable Energy 
Limited in the shareholding ratio of 50:50 for joint development of renewable energy / 
other power projects, subject to requisite clearances/ concurrences/ approvals of 
Statutory/Administrative Authorities, wherever required. 

The Board meeting commenced at 10.30 a.m. and concluded at ........... p.m. 

'lO 3fT1lCIlt "I1'1ij)1;ft if; fffi< ~ I This is for your kind information. 
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KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

Laxml Nagar District Center, 

New Oelhi-l10092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi-ll0017. 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for 

the quarter and nine months period ended 31 $t December 2024 of REC Limited pursuant 
to the Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEal (listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC Limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, ladi Road, 

New Delhi - 110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financia l 

resu lts of REC Limited ("the Company") fo r the quarter and nine months period 

ended 31st December 2024 ("the Statement"), being submitted by the Company 

pursuant to the requ irement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with 

Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requir ements) 

Regu lations, 2015, as amended ("listing Regulations"). 

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and 

approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 

with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 

Accounting Standard - 34 'Interim Financial Report ing' (" Ind AS 34"), prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") and read 

with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting princip les generally 

accepted in India. Our responsibility is to issue a conclusion on the Statement based 

on our review. 

Hp
Typewritten Text
Annexure-1

Hp
Typewritten Text



, 
3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Sta n dard on 

Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 " Review of Interim Financia l Information 

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Instit ute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and p erform 

the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of 

material misstatement. A review of interim financial information consists of making 

inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financia l and account ing matters and 

applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substant iall y less in 

scope than an audit conducted in accordance with standards on auditing and 

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware 

of all signif icant mat ters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 

express an audit opinion. 

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come 

to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement of 

unaudited standalone financial resu lts, prepared in accordance with recognition 

and measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting 

Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with 

relevant ru les issued thereunder and other account ing principles generally 

accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in 

terms of Regulation 33 and Regu lation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

including the manner in which it is t o be disclosed, or that it con tains any material 

misstatement. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration : ~12318WA''''':~''' 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN: 25167453BMlKPX7470 

Place: Delhi 

Date: February 06, 2025 

For MIs 5CV & Co. llP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/N500089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN: 250B701OBMMlPK2514 



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building, 

l axmi Naga r District Center, 

New Delhi-ll0092. 

SCV & CO. UP. 

Chartered Accountants 

8-41, Panchsheel Enclave, 

New Delhi- ll0017 . 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the 

quarter and nine months period ended 31st December 2024 of REC limited pursuant to the 

Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

The Board of Directors, 

REC limited 

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 

7, Lad; Road, 

New Delhi -110003 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial 

resul ts of REC Limited ("the Parent Company") and its subsidiary (the paren t company 

and its subsidiary t ogether referred to as "the Group" ) for the quarter and nine months 

period ended 3pt December 2024 (" the Statement"), being submitted by the Parent 

Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with 

Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI lUsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Usting Regulations"). 

2. This Stat ement, which is the responsibility of the Parent Company's Management and 

approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 

with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting 

Standard· 34 'Interim Financia l Reporting' (" Ind AS 34"), prescribed under section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("t he Act" ) and read with relevant ru les issued 

thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility 

is to express a conclusion on the statements based on our review. 



3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review 

Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Perform ed by the 

Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Acco untants of 

India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 

assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of 

interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons 

responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and ot h er review 

procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance 

with standards on auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assu rance that 

we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

We also performed procedures in accordance wi th the Circ ular No. 

CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2D19 dated March 29, 2019 issued by the SEBI under Regu lation 33(8) 

of the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as 

amended, to the extent appl icable. 

4. The statement includes result of following entities: 

1. Parent Company: 

REC Limited 

2. Subsidiary: 

REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited 

S. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 

above and based on the consideration of the review report of other auditor referred to 

in Paragraph 6 below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that 

the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial results, prepared in 

accordance with recogn ition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable 

Indian Accounting Standards ('ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as 

amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed 

in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regu lations, 2015, as amended, 

including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any materia l 

misstatement. 



Other matters 

6. We did not review the interim financia l results of the subsidiary inclu d ed in the 

consolidated unaudited financial results, whose interim financial results r e flect total 

revenue of iii.: 137.55 (rare and ~ 357.27 crores, total net profit after tax of ~ 68.08 crores 

and ~ 169.39 crores and tota l comprehensive income of ~ 68.08 crores and ~ 169.39 

crores for the quarter ended 3pt December 2024 and nine months period ended 3pt 

December 2024 respectively, as considered in the consolidated unaudited financia l 

results. These interim financial results have been reviewed by other audi tor whose Report 

has been furn ished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the Statement, in so 

far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is 

based solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures performed by us as 

stat ed in paragraph 3 above. 

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN: 25167453BMLKPY8693 

Place: Delhi 

Date: February 06, 2025 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants, 

ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/NS00089 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 

Designation: Partner 

Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN: 25087010BMMLPL2967 
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Annexure C 

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(7) & 52(7A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended 31" December 2024 

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds: 

fin Crares 

Mode of Fund 
If 8 is Yes, 

Raising 
then specify 

Name of (Public Type of Date of Any the purpose of 
Remarks, 

instru raising Amount Funds deviation for which the 
the Issuer ISIN issues! Private if any 

placement) ment funds Raised utilized (Yesl No) funds were 
utilized 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

REC Limited INE020B08FJ3' 
Private 

NeD 03-10-2024 2,712.50 
Placement 

2,712.50 NO NA 

REC Limited INE020B08FK1 
Pri va te 

NeD 08-11-2024 3,000.00 3 ,000.00 NO 
Placement 

NA 

RECUmited INE020B08FL9 
Private 

NeD 
Placement 

08-1 1-2024 2,901 .00 2,901 .00 NO NA 

REC Limited INE020B08FM7 
Private 

NeD 
Placement 

19-12-2024 1,620.00 1,620.00 NO NA 

RECLimited INE020B08FK1 
Priva te 

NeD 
Placement 

19-1 2-2024 575.00 575.00 NO NA 

Total 10,808.50 10,808.50 

*Zero-coupon bond with face value of f 5000 crore issued at a discounted value of ~ 271 2.50 crore. 

B. Statement of deviationf variation in use of Issue proceeds: 

Particulars Remarks 

Name of listed entity p;:- !:- ! ,.. ~/~ RECLIMITED 

Mode of fund ra ising d(;cr.3nd ~~ " ' -c:l Public issue! Private placemep-; \ t. CO~ ... • .~ 

* ~0t~ L, i~ ~( " ~ Delhi-92 ? 

* * ~"\ " ~ ~ ~\...-£- '" . '. " .s ;>Of, '/,.tf: ~/. ~~ Q~- •. -_€' A . - _,,", 



.< 

Particulars Remarks 

Type of instrument Non-con vertible Securities 

Date of raising funds Please refer Col. 5 above table 

Amount raised ~ 10,808.50 craTes 

Report filed for qua rter ended 31-12-2024 

Is there a deviation! va riation in use of funds raised? No 

Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue stated in the prospectusl offer 
d ocument? 

If yes, details of the approval 50 requ ired? 

Date of approval N.A 
Explanation for the deviation/ varia tion 

Comments of the aud it committee afte r review . 
Comments of the audi tors, if any 

Objects fo r which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation/ variation, in the following table: 

Original Modified Original Modified Funds Amount of deviation! variation for the quarter Remarks, if 
object object, if allocation allocation, if utilised according to applicable object any 

any any (f in Crores and in %) 

-------- N A ------

Deviation could mean: 

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds ha ve been raised. 

b. Deviation in the amount o f funds actuall y uti lized as against what was o riginally disclosed. 
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KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819,laxml Deep Building, 

Laxmi Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-ll0092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Account:ants 

B-41, Panchsheel Enciave, 

New Delhi-ll0017_ 

Review Report on Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements for the period 1· April 
2024 to 31" December 2024 of REC Limited. 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC limited 
Core-IV, SCOPE Complex, 
7, Lodi Road, 
New Delhl- 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements of REC 
Limited ('the Company') which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" December 2024, and the related 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months period ended 31st December 
2024 and a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter referred as "Special Purpose 
Standalone Interim Financial Statements") as required by Indian Accounting Standard 34 'Interim 
Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared 
in all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard-34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting prinCiples 
generally accepted in India. These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements have been 
prepared solely for the purpose of inclusion of financial information In respect of fund raising 
programmes of the Company and its Holding Company ("Power Finance Corporation Limited"). 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements in 
accordance with the Standa~d on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial 
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate 
assurance as to whether the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are free of material 
misstatement. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of 
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review 
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all Significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion. 
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Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in 
all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian 
Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of financial 
information in respect offund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto 
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume 
any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown 
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For MIs Kailash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 
Designation: Partner 
Membership Number: 167453 

UDIN: 25167453BMLKPZ9168 

Date: February 06, 2025 
Place: Delhi 

For MIs SCV & Co. LLP. 

Name - Abhinav Khosla 
Desisnation: Partner 
Membership Number: 087010 

UDIN: 25087010BMMLPM9857 



KAIIASH CHAND JAIN & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

819, Laxmi Deep Building. 

Laxml Nagar District Center, 

New Delhi-110092. 

SCV & CO. LLP. 

Chartered Accountants 

B-41, Panchsheel Endave, 

New Delhi· 110017. 

Review Report on Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the period 1" April 2024 to 
31" December 2024 of REC limited. 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
REC limited 
Core·IV, SCOPE Complex, 
7, Lodl Road, 
New Deihl - 110003 

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of REC limited 
('the Company' or 'the Parent Company') and its subsidiary (the parent company and its subsidiary together 
referred to as "the Group") which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31" December 2024, and the 
related Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine 
months period ended 31" December 2024 and a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter 
referred as "Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements") as required by Indian Accounting 
Standard-34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the Parent 
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared in all 
material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting 
Standard-34 'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared solely for the purpose of 
indusion of financial information in respect of fund'raising programmes of the Company and its Holding 
Company ("Power Finance Corporation Limited"). 

Scope of review 

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in accordance with 
the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 
Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard 
requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Special Purpose 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial 
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, 
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance 
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do 
not express an audit opinion. 



Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in all material 
respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Sta ndard 34 
'Interim Financial Reporting' ("Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Other Matters 

i . We did not review the Interim financial statement of the subsidiary included in the Special Purpose 

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, whose interim financial reflect total assets of ~ 1,171.44 
crores, total revenue of ~ 3S7.27 crores, total net profit after tax of ~ 169.39 crores and total 

comprehensive income of ~ 169.39 crores for the nine months period ended 31" December 2024 and 
cash inflows(net) of ~ 4.45 crores for the nine months period ended 31" December 2024, as considered 
in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. These interim financial statements 

have been reviewed by other auditor whose Report has been furnished to us by the Management and 
our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 

respect of the subsidiary Is based solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures 
performed by us as stated in 'Scope of Review' paragraph above. 

Our conclusion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements is not modified in 

respect of the matter as stated above. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of financial information in 
respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto and should not be used 
by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any 
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where 
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

For MIs Kallash Chand Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Registration: llZ318W 

Name - Saurabh Chouhan 

Date: February 06, ZOZS 
Place: Delhi 

~~~ 

For MIs SCV & Co. UP. 
Chartered Accountants, 
ICAI Firm Rellstratlon:000Z3SN/NS00089 

Name - Abhlnav Khosla 
Desisnatlon: Partner 
Membership Number: 087010 
UDIN: ZS087010BMMLPNZ061 



REC limited 
ReJillered Office · Cor.· ... SCOPE Complex. 7. Lodhi Ro,d. New Delhi ·110003, CIN: U010IDLI969G01005095 

Balance Sheet as at 31st December 2024 

s. P,rtitllbrs 

N~ 

ASSETS 
(1) fh"nd,1 Assets 

(.) Cash and cash e:qui\'al t tlls 

(b) Bonk balan«s (IIher Ihan (. ) abo\'!! 

«) ~,i\'dli"e financial in~ItUmenb 

(d) R«t'IVabJe.s 

·Tr .. de Ret:fi\'''bIes 

<tthtt- R«ei.,·abln 

(.) ...... 
In In"eJtmenlS 

(0) Other fin.ncia l assets 

Totnl· Fill411ci41 Asst"s (1) 

(2' NCln.Finandal Anels 

(.) Cummll.>< o1Issels (nel l 

(b) o.f.rred 1011. ol5Sels (mol l 
(d In"tslmenl Properl)' 

Id) Property, ptolnl& Equipment 

(.) C.piUI Work in·Progress 

(f) Othet- Inlo1lngible Assets 

(0) Olher non.financi.'11 usets 

Tot.' • NOII·Fillllflri.' Asstts (2) 

(3) A ... I, c1 ... ified as held for ule 
Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
(1) fino1lndal Liabilit~, 

(.) [)eri" .. t'"e Inund .. 1 in51rumtnIS 

(b) r.y.bJ.s 

Tro1lde payjbles 

-Toul outstanding dues 01 micro enterprises .md snuU enlwpn~ 

-Tolo1ll outslanding dues of c!'t'd llors other lho. I m l(Tc) eillerprises 

and small enterprises 

~her pay.Mes 

-Tol .. 1 outstanding dues of micro enterprlses atld small enterprl .... 

·Tol .. 1 outstanding du~ of .:red llors other th .. n m;cro enterprlWs 

Oind SMo1Il1 enterprises 

(d Debl Stwrilles 

(d) Rotrowings ,other ttun debt se.:unl;es) 
(.) St!bQ,din,1ed Liclbilities 

In Other fiTkl l'l(iilll li.bil.ities 

Tol.I· Fillll"ri4'li.bjfili~5 (1) 

(2) Non·Financialli .. biIitiet 

(.) Currenllax liabl.ilies 4net) 

(b) Pro\'i$lons 

«) Other non ... irlana..J liabilili.s 

TGt.l- N611·Fin411dll' Li.bi/jlj~1 (2J 

(3) EOUITY 
(.) Equity Slura Capltol l 

(b) Instrumenls Enlirely Equit)· In Nalure 
«) Dlhf:, equity 

TQt.'· Cqllilll W 
Tol.I ·UABIUTIESAND EQW1Y(1+2+J) 

Company O"erview and Maleri;r.) Accountin8 Policies 

Pbce:D.lhi 

Dolle: D6lh hbru..,y 20ts 

No<, 
N~ 

• , 
• 
, 

•• 
II 

11 

13 

" IS 

16 

16 

16 

17 

18 

• 
" 

20 

21 

" 
23 

" 
" 
" 

27 

" 
" 

1105 

('I: ill(·' .. n .... 

A •• 1 A. at 
31-12·2024 31-03-202" 

1.211.68 4'" 2 ... 
237.84 :! , 4!\~ 44 

16,977.23 12,4"~ tl~ 

... 2 .1.7U 

5.57,7.\8.:!9 .... <Kl.I~! .~ 

6,665.60 5~'~U. ~1 

25,026.83 ;!·U20.R2 

M7.863.49 5,43.917.110 

332.39 2~H2 

2,638.97 VHSA6 
48.83 

5708 6lO.21 
57.68 B.~9 ..... O.!,,:! 

~.I.f 88.54 
3,747.15 3.5:U.74 

0.01 0.05 
UJ.610.65 5,47,·140.39 

S]Q.58 'S~.70 

0.10 0.1'" 
4.3S 7.23 

2.38 :!ll.l 
4.S:! S.II'J 

~.8B.9'J8.90 2.66.10992 
UU.4S5.IO 1. 72,0It2.OS 

7.49S.53 7.412.21 
35,9-111.68 31.S~1 75 

$,34,'190.17 4.78.214.54 

66.51 
123.98 136 . .!\7 
19-4.83 ~J'. 6~ 
318.11 442.70 

2,61121 2,63.l22 
558.40 5~.40 

73,310.05 65.59 1.53 
16,501.67 68,783.15 

11.11,610.65 5.47.".0.39 

,,.:?1:-
rm .. n.lr. ).."n'8in8 Dintclor 

DIN· 01377212 



REC Limited 
Regi'tered Office _ Core-4, SCOI'EComplex.. 1, Lodki Road, New Delhi , 110003, CIN: UOI0lDL1969GOI005095 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December 2024 

S_ Particular, 

No. 

Revenue from Operations 

ji) Inlerestlncome 

Iii ) Dividend Income 

{ii i) Fees and Commission Income 

I I\') Nel gainl (loss) on fa ir \'.slue eh.mges 

I. Tot.lI Revenue from 0pl!ration, Ii to iy) 

II. Other Income 

III. Totallncomefl+IIJ 

Expenses 

(i ) Fin<lnee Costs 

(i i) Net Iransla lion/lranSdcl ion e~ehange loss 

(iii ) Fees and commission Expense 

(ill ) Impai rmenl on financial instruments 

(y) Employee Benef its E~penses 

(\' i) Depredation and amortizil tion 

(Yii) Corporate Social Responsibilitv E ~penses 

(vii i) Other E~penses 

IV. Tot;'" Expenses (i to viii) 

V. Profit bl!fore TilX fllI·IV) 

VI. Tilx Expense 

(I) CurfMIITa~ 

• Current Yeal 

- Earlitr Yeilrs 

(ii ) Deferred Tcl~ 

Totill Tn Expense (j+ii) 

VII. Profit for the period 

Othl!r comprehensive Incomef(LoSl) 

til Item' that will not be reclassified to profit or loIS 

(a) Re.me<lsurement golin5/(losseJ) on de/ined bellefit pl<l "~ 

T.u impact on above 

(b) Changes in Foir Vcllueof Equ~)'lnj; truments me;tl;l,I rcd ,II F,ur Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

• Tal( impact on ilbo\'e 

Sub·Total Ii) 
1110 

S. Particub.l$ 

Note 

No. 

30 

31 

32 

37 

33 

" 
35 

36 

38 

" .. 
41 

42 

" 

Notl! - -(in Items that will be reclassified 10 profit or lou 

(a) Effective pqrtion of gains and lOss on toedgin.& 'Mtnl MiI!'fl ts in cash flolV hedges 

- Till( Impact on <lbove 

(b) Cost of hedgi;lg reserve 

• Tax impaC;:1 on .abm'l'! 

VIII. Other comprehl!nsive IncomeliLoss) for the period (i+ii) 

IX. Total comprehl!nsive Income for the period (VII+vnl) 

X. Batie" Diluted E,1.mings per Equity Shall! of f 10 each (in f) 

(I) For contill l,lirlg operalions 

(2) For discoruinued oper .. Uons 

(3) For conlmulr'tg and discontin~ oper.r. tions 

Company Overview and Material Accounting !'olides 

Place:Delhi 
D.i.te: 06th February 2025 

Sub·Total (ii) 

.. 
1105 

Period ended 

31-12-2024 

40,135.11 

79.11 

170 90 

366.5t> 

40.751.68 

53.79 

"o.s05."7 

25,365.05 

160.83 

12 80 

~39. "-I 

165.33 

17 98 

~02 27 

166.66 

26,330.36 

14.415.11 

1-1 ,40) 

2.998.10 

11,477,01 

1 27 

4113~) 

124.25) 

(23.30) 

Period ended 

31·12·2024 

1.818.46 

(4S7.67) 

(2,·U O.93) 

606.78 

(4-13.36) 

(466.661 

11,010.35 

..13.59 

43.59 

Period ended 

31-12-2023 

l l:f '71, 

34,533.11> 

" '" 34,570.84 

2 l.0~.' n 
Ion !'.! 

' ''-38 
(M6.'~ 2' 

I~..r, 

171-1 

1,11 IN 

IDS 1] 

21,937.97 

12,632.87 

22" I I 

2,629.96 

10,002.91 

-I .7f1 

(I ~O) 

4.16'1 

(b 82) 

40.45 

(t In Crores) 

Period ended 

31·12·2023 

(744.60) 

187 40 

'>26.59 

(l3~.61) 

HIIl .OJ2} 

(122.47) 

9,880.44 

37.99 

37.99 

~ 
Vivek Knmill Dew,lng"n 

Chilirmiln &; M;lRilging Director 
DIN· 01317212 



REe Limited 
Registered Office ... Core .... t, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003, CIN: l40101D11969GOIOOS095 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 

Net Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for: 
l . Loss! (Gain) on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 

2. Lossl (Gain) on derecognition of Assets held for sale (net) 

3. Depreciation & Amortization 

4. Impairment losses on Financial Instruments 

5. Lossl (Gain) on Fair Value Changes (net) 

6. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) in respect of Loan Assets and Borrowings 

7. Interest on Commercial Paper 

8. Interest Accrued on Zero Coupon Bonds 
CJ. Uruealised Foreign Exchange Translation Loss! (Gain) 

10. Interest on Investments 

Operating Profit! (Loss) before Changes in Operating Assets &: Liabilities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

1. Loan Assets 

2. Derivatives 
3. Other Financial and Non- Financial Assets 

4. Other Financial and Non- Financial Liabilities &: Provisions 

Cash flow from Operations 

I. Income Tax Paid (including TDS) 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

1. Sale of Property, Plant &: Equipment 

2. Sale of assets held for sale 

3. Investment in Property, Plant &: Equipment (incl. CWIP &: Capital Advances) 
4. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets Wlder development &: 

Capital Advances) 

5. Finance Costs Capilalised 
6. Sale! (Investment) in Equity Shares 

7. Redemption! (Investment) in High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) (net) 
8. Redemption! (Investment) In Debt Securities other than HQLAs (net) 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

1. Issue! (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (net) 

2. Issue! (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) 

3. Raismg! (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loans! WCDL from Banks! Fis (net) 

4. Raising! (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and Borrowings (net) 

5. Raising! (Redemption) of Subordinated Liabilities (net) 

6. Pa},ment of Dividend on Equit}' Shares 

7. Repayment towards Lease Liability 

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Net Increasel (Decrease) in Cash &: Cash Equivalents 

Cash &: Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 

Cash &: Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period 

Place:Delhi 

Date: 06th February 2025 

g . c m nln's 

Period ended 31-12-2024 Period cndl'd 31 -12-2023 

14,475.11 

5.63 

(6.03) 

17.98 

251.52 
(364.64) 

150.43 

-
41.34 

(1,540.66) 

(13.99) 

13,016.69 

(Sb,249.b9) 

(94.64) 

(1,179.90) 

4.764.36 

(39,743.1'7) 

(3,10731) 

(3.98) 

6.07 

(51.35) 

(0.05) 

(2.01) 

(1,428.28) 

351.15 

27,207.35 
. 

(9,084.36) 

30,577.11 

(3,291.53) 

]2,632.87 

3 7l! 

(1 32) 

17.7-1 

(646.52) 

(336.73) 

(7.77) 

100.47 
. 

(592.34) 

(25 .32) 

11,144.86 

(63,082.85) 

356.65 

(744.41) 

3,60L48 

(48,723.7'7) 

(2,461 .31) 

(42,850.48) (51,185.08) 

0 .05 

1.61 
(17.37) 

-

(0.32) 

3 .34 

(498.00) 

(482.59) 
(t,128,45) (993.28) 

20,978.51 

2.849.37 

11,286.57 

20,8S9.Se;! 

590.00 

(2,857.05) 

(0.02) 

45,408.57 53,737.27 

1,429.64 1,558.91 
(221.18) (48.59) 

1,208.46 1,510.32 

hairman &: Managing Director 

DIN - 01377212 



REC Limited 
blistered OffiN' - Co~. SCOPE Complex. 7, Ladhi ROI-d,. ~w Delhi - 110003, CIN: l4010JD11969COI00S095 

A Eqtlity Sh.H c~pit.1 

I' 111 "'''' '''''''1 
PartiCtlb.n As at :31-12-2024 Asat31~HOU 

BI-lance althe besinnins of the period 2,633.22: 2,633.22 

Change:c in equity share ci'lpilal during the ~riod· 

B.lance .llhe end of Ike period 2,633.22 l.io33.22 

B Instrumentl enti~ly equity in n.tu~ 

p ............ ~~. 

ramen)a" As at 31-12·2024 As a131..(13-1024 

B.)I-nce .. tthe besillRins of the pc:riod 558.40 558.40 

Ch:ange!> in in!<lrumenls entirely !:<luil)' in n"lUre- dur",,& the- pct'icod 

Balance at the end of the ~riod 558.40 558.40 

C Other Equity 
(~ Ln Croft'S 

r"ticulns R'lerves Ie StlrPluS fVOCI - Ufedive rorlion Costs of Tot.1 

Special Rtstrve for Statulory Resern tals SKuril;" Foni&ft Ce'nefal Rdalft t d Equity 04 Cash flow Hedpn& 
Re,.rve B~d aftd 45-IC of Resene rremium Currency Rn,ne Eamin,s Iftslrumtftts Hedses restr"a 

crta~d W$ dotlbtful Sank of Indiol Ad. Account Monel.ry 
36(1) (viii) of debts WI "" lIem 

the Income 36(1)(viil.) of Tranllation 

Tal( Ad. 1961 Ihe hu:ome DiffHtnt'f 

Tal( Act. 1961 Account 

B,dance as.t 31s1 Mauh 2023 24,977.89 8,025.15 l.5n.53 C190.44) 11.978.44 9,930.n (101.41) 600.05 (1,709.87) 54,488.05 

Pf(lfLt f(lr tne perifld 111.002.91 10,002.91 

Rrme .. t.:urtrnenl of Dfofined ~dit 1'I.,nli (nel of t")loPS) ;\;;& ;\.:.6 

RecojUlition Ihroujth Other Comprehensive In.:onll' jnt1 of laxtsl ;\6.87 (~~7_20) :\94028 (116.0-") 

Tot~1 Compnhfnsin Incttll'if for the period 10,t06.49 , ... , (557.10) )94.18 9,880.44 

Tr;mlif~'rn.od tol (from) Retilinoo Eilrn.n8s 2,.28&JI3 SOH3 2.M ln (-1,792.98) 

Tran~ftTrtd 10 C~r"l Re;en'(' 

Rt'CI.-'s..~lfi,·atlon of It''inl (kiss) on J'.}k/ . xlinguhotlmen t (I 
(S.(6) ' .Ob 

fV()CI fqUlty instrument (n~1 of ta.e!I) 

fort'1 jt.n CUlTl!'n('y Tr.,n!'l.llion gaiN tkl!..<I) on lunlt telm (112..2.~1 (IIl1."'1 

m(lnetary il~mli during the period 

Amort~lkln Juring the poI'riod 1%.:!8 196 !S 

Coupon p.lymenl on Inlilrument Entirely Equity In N.,turt 

(ptrpe!u,,1 Oi!bt Inlitrument~) (Net (If Ta~es) 

Sub-tolal 1.2lI6.8l 'OU, 1,001.11 84.03 '4,1'9M4, S ... .... , 
Di"idendli (1$~7OS) f2.!1~7 ~ 

Sub-total· Trat\SKtiorl with OWI'It" - f2,851.05) - (2,&57.05 

Balance as al3hl D«ember 1023 27,164.72 504.43 10,OZ..87 1.577,5) (706.41) 11,978,44 12.282.17 (59.54) .US (l,31$.59) '1,.795.47 



Particulus Ilesen" " Surplus 
Sp«ial R".nn for Statutory Il"",," U/, St'aarilifl Fortign 
Rutrye Bad and 4S·IC of Rtserve Premium CUfft'ncy 

created ut. doubtful Bank of India Act, Account Monetary 

:%(1) (riii) of dtbls ws 1934 IItm 

thelncomt 36(1)(yiialof Tr;Jn.)ation 

Tp Act. 1961 the In«lMe Differe~ 

Tax Act. 1961 Actount 

Balance as ~ 31$\ March 2024 1&.044.83 687.76 10,111.99 1,577.53 M5.14) 

Profit for the period 

Remt:as\lrernent of Defined ~e(it Pl,,"~ (net of t.'ICE$) 

Reomgnifioo It-.ml.l&h Othe!"Comp~ve t~(net 01 ta~es) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Transferred 101 (from) Ret"ined Earnings 1,662.64 6.\1.12 2.29"i otO 
Tran!Oi'O)'I"red to G.:n~r .. 1 ~e 

Red"s,"ification of g"inl (Io ... ~) on Sollel e~ting\llshmt'nl of 

FVOCI equity in~lrummt (nel of la~l.'!I) 

Fort'ign Curren<"y Transbliol'l gain! (IOAA) on long letm (140 l ~l 

monet"ry items durin~ Ihe period 

Am(\rti~lion during Ihe period 1)98~ 

Coopon p.:'lym('flt Of\ instrumt't'll Enlirt'ly Equity in N"lur 

(1't'rpetuilJ Debllnslf\lmmt~J (Net of niles) 
Sub-lot~1 U6l.64 631.12 U95.40 (O.JO) 

Di\·1dt.-nds 

Sub-tol~l· Tra.ns~ction with owne" 

hlann: II at 31st Dt« .. bt'r 2024 30,707.47 1.)19.88 13.124.39 un.S) (675.44. 

P1ke:Delhi 

Date: 06th ft'bruary 2025 

fVOCI· 

General Rrialntd Eq.uty 

Reser", Eaminp Insttumtnts 

11,m .. 13.363.40 (S7.~) 

11.41i'01 , .. 
(1f .1S) 

11,411-96 42:4.25) 

,~OO (6...l4O.16) 

750.00 (6.)40.16) 

(l2915,~, 

(3,291.531 

12,128.44 _IS,20U!., ~ (&1.24) 

i ~ ·nO p . ........ " .. ,,) 

Efft'Ctiyt rortion Cost, of Total 

of Cash Flew Htdpns 

Hedsn reserve 

n.M6.93) U9O.64 ",591.53 

11.4770. 

I\.~ 

1,360 79 (l .f,O.I. l') (46761) 

1.360.79 11,804.15) 11,010.35 

I t 4n. l ~J 

1)Q.5.5 

(0..3(1: 

i ;l.l9' ~'·l 

- (3,29UJ 

(486.141 (ll1.51) 73,310.05 

~ 
Vivek Kum~r Dcw~ng.ln 

Clu,i.,..n " Managing n;'MOt' 
DIN·01377112 



RECLimited 
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 
CIN: L40101DL1969GOI005095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 
REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company") was incorporated in the year 1969. The Company is domiciled 

in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal place of business at Core-4, 

SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-llOO03, India. The books of accounts are maintained at the 

Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, in addition to the registered 

office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, mainly in the State Capitals 

and one training center at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance across the 

power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non­

Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Being an NBFC, the 

company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. 

The company has been accorded with the status of a 'Maharatna' Central Public Sector Enterprise by 

the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance. 

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. During FY 2022-23, REC has also diversified into 

the Non-Power Infrastructure sector comprising Roads & Expressways, Metro Rail, Airports, IT 

Communication, Social and Commercial Infrastructure (Educational Institution, Hospitals), Ports and 

Electro-Mechanical (E&M) works in respect of various other sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges 

2. Basis of Preparation 

These SpeCial Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of inclusion 

of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding 

Company and complies with the measurement prinCiples laid down under Ind AS notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including those issued by RBI. 

These financial statements for the period ended 31st December 2024 were authorized and approved by 

the Board of Directors on 06th February 2025. 



3. Material Accounting Policies 

The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given below: 

3.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual sysll"111 of 

accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are 

measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies have been opplicd 

consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

Functional and p" esentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional currency of 

the Company. 

3.2 Income recognition 

Interest income 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs 

and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest 

including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of prinCipal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for 

credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the 

complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including 

interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)! Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

(IBC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery 

thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 

rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on 

an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately 

under the head interest income. 

As a matter of prudence, income on credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or 

on accrual basis when expected realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest 

amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the 

corresponding interest income. 

Income from Goverltmeut schemes 

Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on the basis of the services rendered and 

amount of fee sanctioned by the Ministry of Power. 

Dividend income 



Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established 

only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recogn ised 

separately under the head 'Dividend Income' . 

Rentallncome on [nlie.tment Property 

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Other services 

Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the year of receipt. 

3.3 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and! or construction 

of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use, are 

capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its 

intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the 

effective interest rate method. 

3.4 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period. 

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.5 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in 

the financial statements before 1 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a "Foreign 

Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amortized over the balance period of 

such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated 

using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 



3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

R{'cognitiol1 and il1itiai measurement 

Land 

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not amortized. 

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as 

finance lease and is amortized over the lease term. 

Other Tangible assets 

PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs 

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by the Company's management. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the Company beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurenzent (depreciation method, llsefullives, residual value, and impaimJent) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as 

prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use 

for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided @.' 

100%. 

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreCiation are reviewed at the end of each financial 

year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work· ill -Progress 

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress: The 

cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable 

cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE 



3.7 Inveshnent property 

Recognition and measurement 

Investment property are properties held to earn rentals andlor for capital appreciation. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initinl 
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. The depreciation is charged on straight-line method over the 
useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Derecognition 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in 
profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

Reclassification tolft·om investmellt p.-operty 

Transfers are made to (or from) inveshnent property only when there is a change in use. Transfers 
between investment property and owner-occupied property do not change the carrying amount of the 
property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure 
purposes. 

Fair value disclosure 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an 
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant profeSSional qualification and has recent 
experience in the relevant location and category of the investment property being valued. 

3.8 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable that the 

future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the company. 

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, use fill lives and residual value) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 

useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may 

be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the 

useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 

Intangible Assets under Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under development' till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the 

acquisitionl development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 



difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3.9 Lease accounting: 

Right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former operating lease, arc 

recognised except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease. 

An assessment at contract inception is made whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is 

defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) 

for a period of time in exchange for consideration'. 

To apply this definition, the contract is assessed for three key evaluations which are whether: 

the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available 

right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout 

the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract 

right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use and right to direct 'how 

and for what purpose' the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

At lease commencement date, a right-of-use asset and a lease liability is recognized on the balance 

sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the 

lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the 

asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date 

(net of any incentives received). 

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the 

earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The right-of-use 

asset is also assessed for impainnent when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments 

unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available 

or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be 

payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be 

exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for 

interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in­

substance fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use 

asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 



3.10 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through ,I 

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is cOIl. idccl,d 

as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Company; are aV<liloble inr 

immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price and the s.1le hns 

been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such " " ets arc 

measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and nre not 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

3.11 Financiallnstruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 

transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured 

initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described 

below. 

Classification and subsequent measuremeHf of finandal assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories 

upon initial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

• Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and jOint ventures (carried at cost in accordance with 
Ind AS 27) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review for impairment at least 

at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to each 

category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

following conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to 

collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 



Modification of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, '1I1d the 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company 

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss 

in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present 

value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's 

original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 

financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortized cost 

classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are 

designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also faU into this 

category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or 

losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are detennined by 

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host 

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 

a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise 

would be required by the contract to be modified according to a speCified interest rate, foreign exchange 

rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to 

the con tract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts 

or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for 

trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at 

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment 

classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are 

recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and reported within the FVOCI reserve within 

equity, except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such 

gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the Company may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a cU$tomer, when the terms and 

to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 



difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not 

already been recorded. 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights 

to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset .1Ild 

substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the finan cial 

asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

Classification and subsequent measuremm t of finan cial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at 

fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All host contracts which are in nature of a 

financial liability and separated from embedded derivative are measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Hedge accounting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the follOWing requirements: 
there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

the effect of crectit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relationship 

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the 

Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair 
value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is 

effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in 

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification 
adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the 

hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company's risk management objective and strategies. The 

documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s) 
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being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effective.ll'ss 

requirements. 

Fair Vallie Hedges 
In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amoun t of the 

hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging instrulllent 

ceases to exist. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately 

in Sta temen t of Profi t and Loss. 

3.12 Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 
The Company follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as sununarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL 

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default 

and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default 

occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be 

lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest 

accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAD 

and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than Loans 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets 

has increased Significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since 

initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as 

at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial 

recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 

0~~ 0) <<l 
~', NC1. lhi ~', 

\e:; • ~"? 
--;,. !.? ~O, ~ 

o!'Od Ar,CO'~(;-



without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial 

recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk ,It the 

balance sheet date. 

Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped 

pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority. 

A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to 

financial assets written offl may assign I sell loan exposure to ARC 1 Bank 1 a financial institution for a 

negotiated consideration. 

Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement activities are recorded in statement of profit and 

loss. 

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short­

term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an inSignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.14 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors 

respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are 

recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Company. 

3.15 Material prior period errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the 

prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period 

presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are 

restated. 

3.16 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,0001- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.17 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or 

directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 



Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of tax"ble 

income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint 

ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company 

and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in 

profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or equity, respectively. 

3.18 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid 

annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non­

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect of 

the employees into a separate fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay 

further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the 

Company towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the 

contributions relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF), Provident 

Fund (PF) and Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit 

plans covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will 

receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and other 



defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan as",ts 

for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Company's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit 

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. ·Ihe 

liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present v"luc of 

the Defined Benefit Obligation (OBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan "ssels. 

Management estimates the OBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 

Actuarial gainsllosses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one­

year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an 

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction 

value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the 

unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected 

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis. 

3_19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company 

and amounts can be estimated reliably. TIming or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure trequired to settle the present obligation, based 

on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties 

associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time 

value of money is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 

be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 



Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concernin); 

the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset n",y not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the 

rela ted asset is disclosed. 

3.20 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is bilSCd 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the prinCipal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

TIle principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 

material to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements regularly, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.21 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities Simultaneously. 



3.22 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a busirll'ss 

combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the "dml' 

party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities Of businesses under common control are accounted for using 

the pooling of interest method as follows: 

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to hannonise material accounting policies. 

• The financial infonnation in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is 

aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. The 

identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 

transferee 

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the fonn of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3.23 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account. 

4. Implementation of New/ Modified Standards 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind-AS. 
The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Company. 

Further, MCA has not issued any new Jnd-AS applicable to the company. 

5. Material management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, 

estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 

liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on 
historical experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future 
periods if it affects both current & future periods. 

Material management judgments 

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax 

assets can be utilized. Further, the Company Management has no intention to make withdrawal from 
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the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1 )(viii) of the Income tax Act, ] 961 .1Ild 

thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the company 

does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Evaluation of indicators for impainnent of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - As a matter of prudence, income on 
credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or on accrual basis when expected 
realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding. 

Material estimates 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 

depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 

Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 
utili ty of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 

underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may materially impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 

financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the 
extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy 
is used for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Material estimates are involved in determining the provlslOn for income taxes, 

including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of 
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial 

assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and Significant assumptions 

about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and 

resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing 
expected credit loss to estimate EeL: 

• Determining criteria for a Significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 
product/ market and the associated EeL; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure EeL. 

• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 
case of default) 



6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(~ III ( 'rorn . ' 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As.t 31-03-2024 

- Cash on Hand (including impresO 0.09 O.i12 
- Balance. with Banks 
- in current accounts 384.01 46.24 
- deposits with original maturity of 3 months or l~ss 827.58 

Total 1,211.68 46.26 

7 Bank Balances (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) 

• .. Co 

Particubrs As.t 31-12-2024 As.t 31-03-2024 

- Earmarked Balances with Banks 
- For unpaid dividends 7.68 1, 192.72 
- For Government funds for onward disbursement as grant 8.65 13.64 

- Earmarked Tenn Deposits 

- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.71 0.67 

- Balance, with banks not available for use pending allotment of 54EC 210.21 1,245.41 
Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 

- Deposits with original maturity greater than 3 months 10.59 

Total 237.84 2,452.44 



8 D~rivative Financial Instruments 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk managL'nll'nt I'urp0"'\'''' indudl' 
hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges. '11ll' ("htl'lll'lu\\' ~ht .w:-. 

the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. 

Part I 

on ro l . (~. C r ~) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31·03·2024 

Notional Fair Value- Fair Value· Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets tiabilities 

Currency Derivatives -
- Spot and forwards 4,017.01 33.79 - -
. Currency swaps 3,210.87 167.49 11.79 3,126.52 -13.3-1 JHJ J 

-Others 

- Seagull Options 1.51,512.56 15.396.83 610.23 1,21.107.24 11,070.1)7 411.82 

Sub-total (i) 1,58,740.44 15,598.11 622.02 1,24,233.76 11,114.31 449.95 

Interest Rate Derivativ~s 

- Fom'ard Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 95,964.06 1,379.12 257.56 72,128.13 1,367.71 309.75 
Sub-total (m 95,964.06 1,379.12 257.56 72,128.13 1,367.71 309.75 
Other derivatives 

- Reverse cross currency swaps - -
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 2,54,704.50 16,977.23 879.58 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 759.70 

Part II 
Included in Part I are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below: 

" " 
, 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

Notional FairValue- FairValu~ - Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-
Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 

Fair Value Hedging 
- Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 13,995.70 7.85 184.49 15,950.70 - 21)7.73 
Sub-total (i) 13,995.70 7.85 184.49 15,950.70 - 297.73 

Cash Flow Hedging 

- Currency Derivatives 
• Spot and forwards 4,017.01 33.79 - -
- Currency Swaps 3,210.87 167.49 1l.79 3,126.52 43.34 38.13 

-Others 

- Seagull Optioru 1,51,512.56 15.396.82 610.23 1,21,107.2-1 11,070.% 411.82 
- Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Fonvard Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 75,268.36 981.02 73.07 -19,477.43 905.30 12.02 
Sub-total (ii) 2,34,008.80 16,579.12 695.09 1,73,711.19 12,019.60 461.97 

Undesignated Derivatives 6,700.00 390.25 - 6,700.00 462.42 
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii+iii) 2,54,704.50 16,977.23 879.58 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 759.70 

Derivative financial irutruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments in effective cash f!m .. : hedges are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of fair value hedges. the changes in fair value of the 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments along with the fair value changes in the carrying amount of the hedged items are recognised in the Statment 
of Profit &: Loss. For undesignated derivatives, the changes in the fa ir value are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 



9 Receivables 
The Company has categorised all receivables at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 109. 

(i) 

II 
(i) 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables 
Credit impaired receivables 
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Other Receivables 
Unsecured, Considered good 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

As at 31-12-2024 

26.84 

(26.84) 

Sub-Total-! -

6.02 

-
6.02 

Sub-Total-II 6.02 

Total Receivables (I+II) 6.02 

(~ III ( 'r r _ II ( 'S, 

As at 31-03-2024 

26.94 

(26.94 ) 

-

3.70 

3.70 

3.70 

3.70 



10 Loans 
The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109, 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(B) 
(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(C)(I 

(i) 

(ii) 

(C)(II 

) 

) 

Particulars 

Loans 

Term Loans 

Working Capital Term loans 

less: Impairment loss allowance 

Security Details 

Secured by tangible assets 

Covered by Government Guarantees 

Unsecured 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Loans in India 

Public Sector 

Private Sector 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Loans outside India 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (A) - Gross Loans 

Total (A) - Net Loans 

Total (B) - Gross Loans 

Total (B) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Gross Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Net Loans 

Total (C)(l1) • Net loans 

Total (C)(I) and (C)(II) 

As at 31·12·2024 

Principal Ols Amortised Cost 

5,02,594.76 5,05,205.41 

63.025.88 63.412.92 

5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 

(10,880.04) (10,880.04) 

5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

2,65,195.67 2,65,877.18 

2,48,298.26 2,50.406.04 

52,126.71 52,335.1l 

5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 

(10,880.04) (10,880.04) 

5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

4,98.444.00 5,01,617.99 

67.176.64 67,000.34 

5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 

(10,880.04) (10,880.04) 

5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

· · 
· · 

· · 
5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

As at 31-03-2024 
Principal GIs Amortised Cost 

4,62,090.27 4,6.1,975.61 
47,280.6H 47,596.% 

5,09,370.95 5,11,572.57 
(12,380.52) ( 12,38().52) 

4,96,990.43 4,99,192.05 

2,47,650.53 2.48,205.98 
2,24,500.49 2,25,967.H6 

37,219.92 37,398.72 
5,09,370.95 5,11,572.57 
(12,380.52) ( 12,380.52) 
4,96,990.43 4,99,192.05 

4,54,647.08 4,56,894.28 
54,723.87 54.678.29 

5,09,370.95 5,11,572.57 
(12,380.52) (12,38().52) 
4,96,990.43 4,99,192.05 

. · 
· 

. · 
4,96,990.43 4,99,192.05 



11 Investments 
(~ 10 ( :rnrt·s) 

Particulars Amortised At fair value Sub-loAI Others Total 
Cost Through Other Through profit or Designated at fair (At Cost) 

Comprehensive loss value through 

In(ome profit or loss 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5-1+2+3+4) (6) (7-5+6) 

As at 31st December, 2024 
Government Securities 1,615.% - - 1,615.96 - 1,615,96 
Debt Securities 3,578.03 %2.04 - 4,540.07 4,540.07 
Equity Instruments - 386.40 126.45 512.8S 0.10 512.95 
Preference Shares 28.72 - - 28.72 - 28.72 ' 
Others - - - - -
Total- Gross (A) 5,222.71 386.40 1,088.49 - 6697.60 0.10 6697.70 
Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Investments in India 5,222.71 386.40 1.088.49 - 6,697.60 0.10 6.697.70 
Total- Gross (B) 5.222.71 386.40 1.088.49 - 6.697.60 0.10 6.697.70 
ITotallnve!'tment!' 5.222.71 386.40 1,088.49 - 6.697.60 0.10 6,6'7,70 
less: impairment loss allowance (e) (32.10) - - (32.10) - (32.10) 

Totol- Net (D-A-Q 5.190.61 386.40 1.088,49 - 6665.50 0.10 6665.60 

As at 31st Mar(h, 2024 
Government Securitie!' 1,624.08 - - - 1,624.08 - 1,624,08 

Debt Securities 2,144.09 - 1.065.03 - 3,209.12 - 3.209.12 
Equity In!'truments - 410.64 7637 487.01 0.10 487.11 
Preference Shares 28.72 - - - 28.72 - 28.72 
Others - - - - - - -
Total- Gross IA) 3,796.89 410.64 1.141,40 - 5.348.93 0.10 5349.03 
Investments outside India - - - - - - -
Investments in India 3,796.89 410.64 1.141.40 - 5.348.93 0.10 5.349.03 

Total- Gross (8) 3.796,89 410.64 1.141.40 - 5.348.93 0.10 5,349.03 

Total Investments 3.796.89 410.64 1,141.40 - 5.348.93 0.10 5,349.03 

less: impairment loss allowance (C) (28.72) - - - (28.72) - (28.7Z 

Totol- Net (D=A-C) 3.768.17 410.64 1.141.40 - 5.320.21 0.10 5320.31 
-



12 Other financial assets 

The Company has categorised all the components under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with till' n'qUln'llll'nts of 

Ind AS 109. 

(A) 

(8) 

(e) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

(H) 

Particulars 

Loans to Employees 

Advances to Employees 

Recoverable from Holding Company 

Recoverable from Subsidiary Company 

Security Deposits 

Advance paid towards variation margin 

Recoverable from Government of India 

- Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 

Other amounts recoverable 
Less: Impairment Loss allowa l1ct'! 

Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

13 Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Advance Income-tax & IDS 

Prov ision for Income Tax 

Tax Deposited on income tax dt mands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand under contest 

Current tax assets (Net) 

14 Deferred tax assets (net) 

P.uticulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Total (A to H) 

Sub-Total 

Sub-Total 

As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

75.14 57_99 

1.33 O_HlJ 

0.77 II.SI 

6.26 0_96 

1.96 1.44 

-

24.653.15 24,319.-1U 

335.67 73.99 

(47.45) (40.36) 
288.22 33.63 

25,026.83 24,420.82 

(~ In Crorl's 
As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

327.19 2KH7 
0.25 

327.44 289.47 
5.20 5_2" 

(0.25) (0.25) 
4.95 4.95 

332.39 294.42 

In rnr,,"S 
As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

2,638.97 2,485.46 



15 Investment Property 
c, " ....... U·'OI 

r.~lars ~nin&'.liUlc:e Additions Salesllldjv.hrll:nt Closinilalllnc:e 

durinll: the yeu durin. the _;ar 

A.. at :n.ll.1024 
GroS!> C"rryin~ V/llue \"\.03 53.0."\ 

Attumui."lted dqpreciation/ amort isation 4.20 410 
Net CarryinS Vallie '&83 

...., 
A$ III :Jl.Gl.202.4 . 
Gross Carrying VIIII.II! 

AcrumulAted depr«ioltioni /lmortl~'tion 
Net Carryi_, Value 

- - - -

16 Property. Planllc Equ.ip_nt and Intupbl, Ass," 
g ~C: " .... "'~ .. " 

Pnticulus I'roptrty, Planl &c Equipm'lll Capital Work-in· Intansibie Other Inlanpble 

..... -. ....... """ .. -
Development 

FrHhold land I\isht~f-l1H hildinp ""', k hl1litu~1c EDt' Qffi" VehiclK Tot" Irnmovl.bk CGmp~' Computer 

u •• tquipmt"nt Fimam Equipmtftls Equipmtnls ..... .." Software Software 

GJOQ QlT)'ins ulue 
As aI31.03.2023 110.3. , ... <S6 ... ,. ... 07.35 13.911 24.19 G.S4 105.&0 '72 14.67 

Addilion~ 0.'6 1.64 ' .11 ~.24 O.1!> 141.11 :\.72 

Borr(lwing.~ Co~ t Capitilli500 0.:\2 I 

Oisposak ..... 1.80 • .37 .01 1.71< 

As aI31.12.2023 110..39 '50 ....... 1G.42 67.39 ,..89 >S ... .o. 111.9l ." 14.67 

As at 31.03.1024 110.3' \5' ...... 20.45 ... " 19.62 2&.16 0.71 11'77 U50 14.66 

AddilioflS , .. SA' 1." .'" ,.", ;\2.01\ O.~ 

I:Iorrowin~~ Cost C"'pitilliscd 2.01 

OkpoukJ Adjusill"ll:nts ~:tQ.1 .1.0\ ~ ~"\1 S.16 0.41 69.98 

A, al :n.I2.2024 11039 1.59 403." 2M5 "." 31.08 25." 03' "'.60 57." 14.71 

Acalm.lalHi deprKiatioaJ amortisation 

As at 31.03.2023 03' 20.61 U3 IS.to 1'-21 11.40 0.38 ..... 13.05 

Charge for Ihe yeat 0.01 ~.41 097 ~. :i6 ",. 2.iO 0.02 \6.7.'\ 100 

Ad~tmenl for d~l~ toOt ) M. 1.16 2.1.' (O.Ol) ;\Q;\ . 
'\S at 31.12.2023 0.41 26.02 '.2J) 19.&0 18.17 11.87 0.41 ".48 14.05 

AJ at 31.03.2024 0.41 27.82 3.' 1'.1J9 18.71 11.69 'Ol .2.56 14.14 

C"h;uge for the year 0.'" "'.21 n.i)i .. " :\.77 , .. oro "'. ." 
Adjustment (or db'pos.,l!1 . ,,, 2.76 2.K'i 'i.?-4 ". l O;.~ 

A$ at 31.12.2024 M' 29.M ~.49 11.15 ".., '33 0." ... " 14.35 

Net block;as ott 31.03.2024 110.39 1.18 429.08 16,93 ..... 1D.91 14.47 020 630.21 13.5" 0.' 

Net block u at 3\.12.2024 110.39 1.10 37U4 15.9' 44.17 11.45 lUI ..,. "U • 57 .. ..,. 
-_. 

@ __ '. ., .. I': 
.. ~'. 

~:, .. .. ~;:) 
~~ 



17 Other non-financialusets 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

rG) 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Government Authorities 

Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

Prepdid Expenses 

Deferred Employee Benefits 

Other Assets 
Total fA to G, 

18 Assets Classified as Held for Sale 

Particulars 

Assc t~ C las.sified as Held for Sale-Building 
Tolal 

As at 31-12-2024 

As at 31~t2~2024 

(~ in ( 'rurt's 
As at 31-03-2024 

2.64 (1.17 

6.35 7.97 

32.56 37.47 

- 5.15 

29.46 21.Y6 

23.13 IS.HI 
- (UI! 

94.14 88.54 

(~ in Crnrcs 
As at 31-03-2024 

0.01 0.05 
0.01 0.05 



19 Payable 

(~ in Cron .. -s) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As .t 31-03-2024 

(A) Trade Payables 

Total outs tanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.10 0. 1 () 
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.38 7.23 

Sub-total 4.48 7.39 

(B) Ocher payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.38 2.M3 
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.52 H.69 

Sub-total 6.90 11.52 
Total (A+B) 11.38 18.91 



20 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(8) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(tii) 

(iv) 

(C) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

(~ in Crorl'';) 

Particulars As at 31.12.2024 As at 31.03.2024 

Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amorti!>cd Cost 

Secured Long.Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds - - 1,955.00 2,052.46 

54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 43,489.85 44,534.24 41,IlO.HO 42,535.71 

Tax Free Bonds 8,998.71 9,146.20 8,998.71 ",326.50 

Bond Application Money pending allotment 210.21 210.07 1,245.41 1,244.57 

Sub-total (A) 52,698.77 53,890.51 53,309.92 55,159.24 

Unsecured Long.Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,97,381.29 2,04,197.43 1,72,275.29 1,7H,093.90 

Infrastructure Bonds 3.96 9.95 3.96 9.32 

Zero Cou pon Bonds 2,753.84 2,747.92 - -
Foreign Currency Bonds 28,180.23 28,153.09 32,963.75 32,H47.46 

Sub-total (8) 2,28,319.32 2,35,108.39 2,05,243.00 2,10,950.68 

Unsecured Short·Term Debt Securities 

Commercial Paper - - - -
Sub-total (C) - - - -

Total - Debt Securities (A+B+C) 2,81,018.09 2,88,998.90 2,58,552.92 2,66,109.92 

Debt Securities issued in! outside India 

Debt Securities in India 2,52,837.86 2,60,845.81 2,25,589.17 2,33,262.46 
Debt Securities outside India 28,180.23 28,153.09 32,963.75 32,847.46 

Total· Debt Securities 2,81,018.09 2,88,998.90 2,58,552.92 2,66,109.92 

21 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(Ui) 

(iv) 

(8) 

(i) 

(ti) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

TIle Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the reqUirements of Ind AS 

109. 

Particulars As at 31.12.2024 

Principal O/s Amortised Cost 

Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from Banks 48,377.85 48,560.77 
Term Loans from Financial Institutions 4,550.00 4,550.00 
Term Loan in Foreign Currency 88,000.01 87,794.17 
Term Loans from Government of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 
Sub-total (A) 1,50,927.86 1,51,027.25 

Unsecured Short· Term Borrowings 

FCNR (8) Loans 42,879.14 42,886.95 
Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 7,526.00 7,537.68 
Overdrafts/ Cash Credit repayable on demand from Banks 3.22 3.22 
Sub-total (8) 50,408.36 50,427.85 

Total· Borrowings <other than Debt Securities} (A to B) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in! outside India 

BorrOWings in India 1,]3,336.21 1,13,660.93 
Borrowings outside India 88,000.01 87,794.17 

Total- Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 

(t III Cron..'~) 

As at 31.03.2024 

Principal O/s Amortised Cost 

50,612.28 50,620.49 
8,050.00 8,072.29 

67,205.64 66,772.38 
10,000.00 10,325.12 

1,35,867.92 1,35,790.28 

25,138.67 25,151.29 
10,875.94 10,883.D4 

267.44 267.44 
36,282.05 36,301.77 

1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

1,04,944.33 1,05,319.67 
67,205.64 66,772.38 

1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

~- ~ «,1 .' .. ~ '''~'. /'@J'/\ l' '" \ 
.'. ; "~ .. , .' , 

I. r .... . . .i 1 . -. 
') " I • . " 

\ . . ~ 
\ . . 
~ . . / 



12 Subordinated Liabilities 

The Company has categorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements o f Ind /\~ 1119 . 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(i) 

(ti) 

Particulars 

175th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds· 

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
1991h Series· Subordinate Tier~[] Bonds -

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 
222nd Series - Perpetual Tier-] Bonds· 

7.98%\ with call option on 30.04.2033 and on annual 

anniversary date thereafter 
226th Series· Perpetual Tier-. Bonds -

8.03% with call option on 30.09.2033 and on annual 

anniversary date thereafter 

Total· Subordinated Liabilities 

Subordinated Liabilities inl outside India 

Borrowings in India 
Borrowings outside India 

Total· Subordinated Liabilities 

(0( III Cron .... ) 

A •• t 31.12.2024 As .11 31.03.2024 

Face Value Amortised Cost fac~ Val uc Amorti!icd Cost 

2,151.20 2,257.09 2,151.20 2,091.9; 

1,999.50 2,025.23 1,999.50 2.04 lobO 

2,000.00 2,105.17 2,OOO.tKI 2,145.2~ 

1,090.00 1,111.04 I ,090 .UO 1,133..31l 

7,240.70 7,498.53 7,240.70 7,412.21 

7,240.70 7,498.53 7,240.70 70412.21 
. . . 

7,240.70 7,498.53 7,240.70 7,412.21 



23 Other Financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(B) 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividends 

Unpaid Principal & Interesl on Bonds 

- Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 

- Inlerest on Bonds 

Sub-total (8) 
Advance received towards variation margin (C) 

(D) Funds Received from Government of India for Disbursement as 

Subsidy/ Grant (cumulative) 
Add: Interest on such fund~ (net of refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Benefici.ri es (cumulative) 

Undi~bursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy/ Grant 

(E) 

(F) 

Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Government of India 

Other Liabilities 
Total (A to F) 

24 Current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 
Provision for Inc:om. Tax 

Less: Advance Income·tax & IDS 
Current tax liabilities (Net) 

2S Provisions 

Particulars 
Provisions for 

(A) Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 
Eamed l eave liabili ty 

Medical Leave Llabihty 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 
Long Service A, ... ard 

Incentive 

Others 

SlIb-tottlf (A , 

(B) Others 

Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

SlIb·total (B) 

Total (A+8) 

26 Other Non-financial Liabilities 

Particulars 
Income Received in Advance 

Sundry Liabilities Account (Funded Interest Capitalisation) 

Unbilled Liability towards Capital Account 

Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 

(A) 

(B) 

(e) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

Advance received from Government towards Government Schemes 

Statutory Dues 
Total (A to F) 

As at 31-12-2024 

As at 31-12-2024 

As at 31-12-2024 

As at 31-12-2024 

(~ in Crurl'''; 
As 01131-03-2024 

7.68 1,1<;12.72 

28.81 22.42 

14.89 1iI.52 

43.70 32,94 

9.556.32 -I,63H.HO 

96,280.91 ')fl,2R2.5::! 

3.58 3.56 

(96,273.66) (96,269.71) 

10.83 16.37 

24,653.15 2-1.382.40 

1.675.00 J,55R.52 

35,946.68 31.821.75 

I~ in Crorl's 
As at 31-03-2024 

- 3,2R3.R5 

- (3.217.341 

- 66.51 

{~in Crore..; 
As at 31-03-2024 

2.58 0.13 

34.18 33.45 
21.80 21.52 

2.40 2AO 

5.97 4.92 

4.90 4.51 
33.72 36.55 

0.80 t .07 
]06.35 104.55 

17.63 32.02 
17.63 32.02 

123.98 136.57 

m ro((~s) 

As at 31-03-2024 

0.07 -
46,75 47.80 
48.38 48.38 

63.50 8) ,38 

008 

36.05 58.06 
194.83 239.62 



27 Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Authorised: 
Equity sh.m.·s of ~ 10 ~ach 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 

Full}" paid up Equit~, shares of ~ 10 each 

Total 

28 Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Particulars 

Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument ent irely equity in nature of ~ 10 lakhs each 

Total 

29 Other Equity 

fA 
(i) 

(iii 
(iii 

(iv 
(v) 

(vii 

IB) 

Ie) 

) 

) 

) 

Parliculars 

Olher Reserves 

Special Reserve created U/536(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act. 1961 

R~r\"e' ior Sold .:md doubtiul debts U/S 36(I]tvi!-.ll 01 thOl' [ncomt'Tol~ Act, 1%1 

Statutory Reserve uls -Is·le of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Securities Premium 

Foreign Currency Monetar~' ltem Translation Difference Account 

General Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

OlhOl'rComprehensive Income (OCI) 

- Equity Instruments through Olher Comprehensive Ino.:ome 

- Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 

- Cost of Hedging reserve 

Total· Other Equity 

As at 31.12.2024 

No. of Shares Amount 

5,00,00,00,000 S.,.,... 

2,63,32,24.000 l ,6ll.22 

2,63,32;2-1,000 2,633.22 

As at 31.12.201-1 

Number Amount 

5~4 558.40 

5,584 558.40 

As at 31.12.202-1 

30,707.-17 

1,319.88 

J3,I2-I.3Q 

1.577.53 

(675.-14) 

12,728.-14 

15,209.67 

(82.24) 

(480.14) 

(113.51) 

73,310.05 

I , ' m l r"r~'!< 

As .,1 31.0.1.2024 

No. of Sh.ln·s Amounl 

',OO,(lllft\.lll.1 "I,«'InJIII 

!,b3,32,~".nU(l 2 611 21 

2,63,32,2-1,000 2,633.22 

g iu t,;ruret;:j 

As at 31.03.202-1 

Number Amount 

; ,:;R4 I)SJt:.4t' 

5,58-1 558.40 

(~ 111 Crnrc ... ) 
AS.1131.03.202-1 

2B.O-I-I.R.1 

M177t. 

ItJ.82R.q<J 

1.1)'7 5.1 

(t.nt.14) 

t l,'I78.·I·1 

lJ~lb:U(l 

(57 <)Qj 

(1.8-1h.<lJ) 

1,6':10.0.1 

65,591.53 

e
::C:'/i-( , , "~- . / .. , 

. /-" /'\ 

1,., ('.,- ..... -.~ .• \ . I '" ~ r , . ' I . ~ ' ''2) 
"'- :-; )/ 



30 Interest Income 

(A) 

(il 

Iii) 

(8) 

(i) 

(C) 

(i) 

(0) 

(it 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Particulars 

Interest on Loan Assets 

long term financing 

Short tenn financing 
Sub-tobiIIA) 

Interest Income from Investments 

Interest from Long Term Investments 
Sub-Ioul (B) 

Inleusl on Deposits with Banks 

Interest from Deposits 
Sub·toul (C) 

Other Intere.llncome 

interest on Delayed Payments by Borrowers 

Intemt from Staff Advances 

Interest on Mobilisation Advance 

Inlernl on unwinding of Receiv"bl. on ,,"ounl of Siresses Loan Assels 

Sub·lolal (D) 

Total- Interest Income (A to D) 

31 Dividend Incom.e 

Particulars 
Dividend from Subsidiary Comp.tny 

Dividend from Other Investments 

Total - Dividend Incame 

32 Fees and CommiSiion Income 

Particulars 

Fees basN Income 

Prepayment premium 

Fee! Other Income for Implementation of Government Schemes 

Total- Fees and Commission Income 

33 Other Income 

PamcuJar5 

Net gain! (loss) on disposal of assets classified as held for sale 

Renlallnrome 

liabilities/Provision Written Back 

Fees ftom Training Courses 

Mi.scetl.lneous Income 

Total - Other Income 

Period en<kd 31-12-1014 

On fiNinciat On Jinan('ial On fiNln(ial 

Auel ........ ur.d AsUlt mraturt-d A .. el, mu.und "I 

,,' Fair V"hl' ,,' Amortilld COil Fair Value through 

Ihrough OCI I'rofil or LOll 

J6,T05.qs 

J,273.3<t 

39,379.19 . 

29823 73.88 

298.13 73.83 

)82.22 

182.22 

189.24 
. 431 

0.09 

7.85 
201.49 

40,061.23 73.83 

Period ended 31·12-2024 

72.15 

6.Q6 

79.11 

Period ended 31·12-2024 

139.70 

21.Q2 

9.28 

170.90 

Period ended 31·12·2024 

6.03 

12.87 

2.35 

10.30 

22.2 .. 
53.79 

.-
Period ended 31-12·201:\ 

On Finanrial On Finance; .. 1 Un Fin .. ",i .. 1 
Anel, menuted A"ell me.'l.\lrr,1 A~~ .. I' ,11""lurl'd ,ll 

'" hirValue "I Amortised ('o!ll hi. V"h, .. throllgh 
Ihrough DCI rrofil or I.os. 

31,6.',4 ~J 

l,81S_17 

33,490.16 

. 12'1.66 4'>.OS 

119.66 45.05 

. 250.~7 

250.97 

1065" 
3.87 

- O.IR 

110.59 

- 33,98U8 45.05 

(t in lrnrl's) 

Period ended 31·12-2023 

23.-10 

O.flt 

24.21 

(t' in Crort's) 

Period ended 31-12-2023 

42AfI 

"'6.69 

5-149 

143.66 

on rores) 

Period ended 31-12·2023 

1.32 

13.59 

10.05 

12.72 
37.68 

c-



34 FinOlR.(e Costs 
FinOl~ Costs have been incurred on financiOi l liabilities measured al amortised COSI. 

POirriculars 
Inwre't on Borrowin!, 
_ LoaM from Govem~nt of India (NSS1-) 

• Loans from 8ank:>/ FinanciallnSlitullons 
_ Exlernal CommerCIal Borrowings 

Sub-Total (i) 

(iii InterHt on Debt Se('UJ'ities 

- Domestic Debt S«\Jrilies 
. ForeIgn Currency Debt Securities 

- Commercial Paper 
Sub-Toul (ii) 

(iii) Inte,"t on Subordinated Li .. bilitiK 

- Subordinate Bonds 
Sub-Total (iii) 

(iv) Other Interest E"pen,e 

- SWAP Premium 
- Interest on Variation Margin 
-Interest on liabilil)'towards employre benefits 

Sub-Total (iv) 

Totill - Finilnce Costs 
Less Finan(r Costs CapItalised 

Totill - Finance Costs (Net) 

35 Net tunslation! tu"sadion e"chl."se lossl (pin) 

Particular, 

Neltranslation/ tranSJIction exchange less/ (gain) 
Total 

36 Fee' anod conuni"io" npense 

(j) 

(iiI 
(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Particular, 
Guarantee Fee 

Listillg and TrusteeshIp Fee 

Agenc)' Fees 
Credit Rating Expenses 
Other FiniUlce Charges 

Total ti 10 vt 

31 Net Gainl (loss) on Fair Value Changes 

(A) 

(i) 

(in 

Parttcu!.ar, 

Nel gain/llou) on finandal instruments at Fair Value 
through profit or loss 
On trading Portfolio 

Othert 
- Changes in lair voduc of Deriv;]hvn 

- Changes in fair valur of long Term Investments 

- Changes in fair value of Short-term MF mvestments 
Sub-toul (ii) 

Toul(A) 

Period ended 31·12-2024 

Period ended 31-12-2024 

Period ended 31-12-2024 

Period ended 31-12-2024 

(I in erm· .. ) , 
Period ended :l1-12-2023 

619.69 (,It..,'"' 
3,603.24 ·I,mq(l() 

U02.20 .1,0\2<;1 14 

9,025,13 8,132.89 

13,265.0" 11.1)6.<;.4-1 

1,(10 ... 50 1,209_';0 

lU1I-17 

101,269.5. 12,375.41 

513.68 "66% 
513.68 466.96 

1.208.88 1.02f •. .o 
3"9.20 S551 

0.63 .1.6fJ 

1,558.11 1,078.28 

25,361.06 22,053.54 

(2.01) (0.121 

25,365.05 22,053.22 

(P iu CnN""', ,. 
Period ended 31·12-2023 

160.8..1 1116.62 

160.83 106.62 

(f in Cmre ) , 
Period ended 31-12-2023 

0.14 UK 
0.03 (UH 
2.13 0% 
3.28 .;:\.01 

1.22 lO.og 

12.80 lS.J8 

'" rores 
Period ended 31-12-20ll 

. 

83.72 2g)."6 
2gj).92 53.27 

192 2 0J 
366.56 338.76 
366.56 338.76 

F,.,r W/lft chnngf.'S ,It 'hIS schtdllk "rt .."htr ,h"" Ih~ ""S4llg on M aHIn! 0/ ftgTlfrd ,,,U,rsJ III tdn lel t '(1""51:' and rcpn; X',,'s dlQII8ts '" /11" 1""11~ 0/ dlrW/J'wn dt'Slgltlffta liS ,'CVIJOIIUf 

"tilgtS /101 dtsigtmkd IIndtr JttdgtQcco,m,jng and IttCfft'C/itot "tdgt' 



38 Impairment on finandal instruments 

Particulars Period ended 31-12·202, 

On financial insh'uments 

Ii) 

Iii) 

(iii) 

-loans· 

-Invt'stmenls 
-Others 

measured ,II fVOCI 

Total (j+ji) 

39 Emptoyee Benefits bpen5e 

Particulus 
• Salaries and Allowances· 
- Conlributi()Il to Provident and Other Funds 

· Renllow,uds Residential Accomod .. tlOR {or Employee'S 

- SId" Welfare Expenses 

40 Depreci.ation and amortizOition 

Particulus 

- Devr«iation on Properl~·. Plant & Equipment 
· Depreciation on Investment Property 
· Amorli:f.oItlon on Intangible AS$tts 

41 Corporolle Social Responsibility Expenses 

Particulilrl 
- Dill."Ct F,lIpenditure 
- Overheads 

n Other bpenus 

ParticulOiIlii 

- Travelling a nd Conveyance 

- Publicity & Promotion Ellpen.ses 
- Repairs alld Maintenance 

- Rent, taxes .lind energy cost5 

-Insurance Charges 

- Communication costs 

~ Printing & stationery 
- Director's silting fees 

- Auditors' fHS and expe~ 

- l.eg.al &: Profes.stonal Charges 
- Donations &- Charit)· 

- Net loss on Disposal of Property. Plant &: Equipmenl 
- Trdining And Conference Expense 

- Government Scheme Monitoring ElC penses 
- Other ElI"penditu re 

. 

Tot.1 

Toul 

Toul 

Total 

On financial Instruments 
measured ., Amortist'd Cost 

223S9 

». 
1247 

239.44 

Period ended 31·12-2024 

Period ended 31-11-2024 

Period ended )1·11-2024 

Period ended 31-12-2024 

• "1'1", -'; 

Period ended 31 -12-202.1 

On financial instruments On fin.uH'i.lI iMlrurncnts 
measu~d .1 WOCI measUfC!d at Amocti!loed Cost 

W".47) 

('.95 
. (646.52) 

( l mer \)rl''' 
Period ended 31-12-2023 

91A9 %-12 

26.64 2:U~O 

7J6 no 
39.8-& ,:\(1 .. 15 

16S.33 154.27 

( t ' C '" rnr4'.") 
Period ended 31 -12-2013 

17.56 14.74 
021 

02 1 1.(1) 

17.98 17.74 

( I C ,n rl\n .... ' 
Period ended 31.12-2023 

197 . ..Jf\ 126.2K 

' .79 ".61 
202.27 131.89 

(I in Crnrl's) 
Period ended 31-12-2023 

22.02 n25 
2413 no:; 

'7<5 18~11 

5."5 4.114 
0~15 0.16 
4.79 1.7'1 
110 1.03 
0.40 0.39 
HO lAO 

",. 7.94 
0.Q1 

5.63 3.7K 
10.33 12.37 
35.44 6.58 
16'" 21.28 

166.66 105.37 



U Tax Expense 

'" (I ' C rort" 
Puti<ulars Period eneNd noll_lOU Period eftdc'd 11· ll-102J 

- Current tax expense 3,002..50 2 .. 10·, tIo~ 

- Current I.HI elCpense/ (ben~jl) pertaining 10 earl'er years 

Sub·total- Current Tax 3,002.50 2,010-4.85 

- Deft'rr~ tax ellpense/ (credit) (4.40) 225 II 
Total 2,998.10 2,629.96 

.. Earnings per Share 

Particulars Period ended 31-12-%024 Period ended 31-12. 2023 
Numerator 

Pralit for the year from c(Jntinuing operAtions as per State~nt 11 .. "7.01 to.OO2 .Yl 
of Profit and Loss (t in CroTt's)· 
Profit 1o, tho ~'ear from discontinued optr.tions " pO' -
Statement of Profit and l()5s (f in Crores)· 

Prolit lor Ih~ year from continuing and discontinued operations 11,477.01 10,00291 
as per Statement of Profit and loss (f in Crort's)· 

I2!:DmDiDilIkn: 
Wt'tghtN.! average Number of equity shares 2,63,32,H,000 2"b;\,J2,24,OO() 

Basic &: Diluted Earnings per Share (in f for an equity sh.ue of 4359 37.'19 
'10 e')ch) (for continuing operations) 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in f for an equity share of . 
f 10 eAch) (for discontinued operations) 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in f for an equity share of 4359 J7~ 

flO each) (for continuing and discontinued ope~ations) 



REC Limited 
R~siitered OUit.e - Core4, SCOPf Complu. '.loclhi Rl»d, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: UOIOlDll96')GOIOGS09S 

Consolidated Balan~e Sheet as at 31st De~ember 2024 

S. No. P"rtit.uliu5 NlJte 

No. 

ASSETS 
II) Finanwl A5Hlt ,., C,,~ "TId Ca~ Equ;\'"lnllS • 
,b, R"nk Ral,lnce,; other thlm (,,) above 7 ,,' D.!rivali\'e FiTl,)l1ciollln...trumtnls • ,d, RKtl'·.Abl~ • 

, Tr .. de RKth'/ibles 

• Olher Rr«lvolbles 

I., I.G.lM 10 

<0 In\'e~tments 11 

,g' Olher Fin.mci.1I A!>5eb 11 

Totll'- FiNl2Ntill/ An..b· (I) 

f2l Non·Fin.nci,,1 Assels 

I" Current T.,,, Assets (;>..It II 13 
Ib, Dderred Tn A .... «'t.. ... (Ntll " (,', ITI,·twmtnt I'ro~(ty IS 

(J) Properly, PI",nl &; Equipm~nt 16 

fo!) C,'pd,,1 Work· itI · Prosr~s " I~ Otht r Int""sib~ .u..;ets " 'g) Other Non·Fin.lnci.1l Ass~l~ 17 

Totlll- NOIl-Finllnti/d\utts (2) 

III A" el' cbSiified ~ Mid for ",Ie 18 
Tolal ASSETS 11+2+3) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
ft) Fin.I\ci.1 Li"bililie, 
(.l) DerJ"iI!i\"t Hniln(J,,'lnstrumtnt~ • ,b, PilYilbl.s 19 

Tr.,.io! P.~'.~ 

·Tnt.,!1 oulsl.mlSing dues 01 mH:ro enttrprb~ "11.1 lim.1I1 enterprises 
-Tot .. 1 oulst.mding dues of crtditors other thiln micro tnlerprlsrs 

,lfld sm.IlI ~nt('rpnse.. 

Other PiI}'.,I l>1ts 

,Tot,1I " 1.11<;1.11'1"1118 dut'S III " .. ao I.'Tl l erp(l~s .m d Sln.,1] ,mte(prise~ 

·To lal oulstilOdl"g dues of ' tl!'d ilors OIM-t than micro f1lll.' rpriSb 

MId sm.1I eTltt1jXise1i 

(,' Debt Stcurit ie~ lC 

'0' Borrowing~ (("I th.r Ih.m Ot>bt Sa.:un hts) 21 
I., Subordinated l i.lbil,hes 22 
Hl Olhl.'r FiTl.lnci.l l L iil bilitlt.~ 23 

Totlll - Filllm(ioll Lillbilitits (I) 

I2l Non-Fin.llnci.lll LiabilitiH (., Cu rrtn t Ta" L",bilit il.'S {Ntt, " Ib, rro\,j ~;ons 25 

M Other Non-FhMnd.d 1I.\b-lihes " ToIRI - l\'oN-fj"IlN{jlll Lillbi/ilits (2) 

13l EQUITY to, Eqully Share C.p:til l 17 (b, InSlrumtr>lft Fl'll lrtlr Equllv In Ndture " 1<' Othtr Equity 29 
Total - r."lity (J) 

Tottll- UABIUn£SAND £QUl1Y{J+ltJ) 

Comp.lIny Ovtrvitw .lind M.lIltri,,1 Accounting Polides 1105 

rllce:Dtlhi 
D.lIt~: 06th Ftbrwry 2015 

(( • • l " .... · ~I 
AI "t As .I' 

31-12·2024 31-0.1-1024 

1 .... l!.6J ~I>~ .,... 

iiSol 18 !.h')<) ("i 
1 ().'~n 23 t U X2,,] 

l Y4.2~ ]"iI.tQ 

6 02 1 111 

5,;7,7JS.2<J 4,YI.1'J2J'''i 

6,~,38 .... . l"i2 \2 

25,031\ 5'l H~41 72 
6,08,93951 S,4UM. 13 

~ J .6!:I .\OII.hI'! 

2.655.8) l ,5tlll% 

1.01 

623. 27 II.ltl9ti 

57.66 ~l <;<1 

0 . .16 "" 10-110 1\7~n 

3,783.93 ).582.76 

6.41 111211 
6,11,7)O,,n 5,48,191.0'1 

579-58 ;Or,<) 70 

0 .10 0.1t> 

110 27 OJ77", 

2.$ :! .'';'l 

~ .s~ KIA 

2,8S.953. 1"i ~,M.tlbl . 2-1 

2.0\ ,455.10 I.n.OQ2.OS 
7, .. 985 3 7,~I~.21 

36,J36.30 11,940.'\.') 

5,35,1]9,93 4.78.377.10 

M51 

I 24.J-I 1J73~ 

200.17 2Y,.7'I 

]z..\ .51 463.64 

2,633. 22 2.6.l3.22 

558.40 "SS.40 
73,97J.J6 6o.1SS.b3 

77.165,98 .9.lSO.2S 

6,12,730.·&1 5,-18,191.09 

Vivek J(umlr DewlIn8.lln 

Chairm.lln &; Man;t.sina Director 
DIN - 01377112 



REC Limited 
Resittered Offin· Core", SCOPE CompleJ(, 7.lodki RJ»,d. New Delki· 11000l. CIN: U0101Dl1%,GOIOGS09S 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st December, 2024 

S. No. Particulau 

Rt\'tnut from Operanons 

(I ) Inlrresllncomlt 

fli ) Di\'wend Incomi!' 

{iii) Fees and Commission In.:omt' 

(Iv) Nt'lsain/ (bo..",l on r"ir \'Oilult chanse:<. 

I" ) Sale of Services 

I. Total Revenue from Operatlonl (i to v) 

II. Olhlt r Incomlt 

111. Total Income (1"111 

Elfpl'nsl'S 

") Fin.ance Costs 

(ii ) Nltt Tran!llalion/Transaction E lfehans~ lof;fi 

/lIi ) Fe~ MId Commi .... ~i-on b~n~ 

(iv) Impairml't't on Fm;tl1<iallnslrumenls 

(\. ) Co:o;l of Seryi(l'"!i Rendt'red 

(vI) Employee 6enlt(jls E),penses 

(\"11 ) Dt'preeiollion ,md Amorlizallo" 

(vii i) Corperolte Soci,lI Rrsponsibilil)' E>.pto/lSolho 

(i ll) Other Ellpmses 

IV. Total bpenstl Ii to b) 

V. Profit bdore T.u (III-IV) 

VI. Tax Elfpt'nse 

Ii) CurrenlTiU: 

• Curriff"l t VNr 

• Earl ier Yt'~ 

(iiI Deferred T&:I 

Total Till Exp*rtle ti.ii , 

VII. Profit lor Ihe Period IV·VI) 

VIII. Olht'r Comprehensive Ineome/(Loss) 

iii Iteml Ihal will not be reclusitillld to profit or lou 

C" Re mt~ :O;\lfemenl Col nr.l(l~) on DtIlntd Btoeiil I'lao:o; 

• T.a", Imp.M.:t on ..Ib(we 

Cb) Ch,mgl'!> In Fair ValLiIt of FVOCI Equity infitrUnlentfi 

· Toll< imp.l':1 on above 

Sub-Tolal (il 
IiI) Item, thai will be l"KlaS5ified to profit or loti ,.) Effective Porlion 01 Cash Flow Hrdgf!; 

- Ta)' impaCI on above 

'b) Cost of Hrds,ng R~erve 

• T,u, Imp.tel on .I00\'e 

Sub·Tol"llii) 
Olhltr Comprth,nslvlt Ineomelilou) for th. Period (i.m 

IX. TollIl Comprehensive Incom. for the Period (VI1+VIII) 

X. Batie &: Diluted Eaminp per Equity Share of , 10 lIIaeh (in" 

(I) For Contmulng OptroJtiom. 

(2) For Oisconhnurd Oper.alrons 

(3) For Continumg and Diso;ontim.u:d Operalion~ 

Company Ovtfview and Mllterial Aceountinl Policies 

Place:Delhi 

Olle: 06th ftbrulr), 1025 

Note 

No. 

30 

31 

" lS 

3J 

" 

35 

36 

37 

" .. 
" 
" ., .. 
" 

.. 

lt05 

( III l r .. ,,~) 

Period ended Period rndrd 

31·12·2024 3 ')·12-202.1 

40.15794 

,% 

170.'JO 

"",. 
3JO.6S 

41.033.01 

52.65 

41 .085.66 

25,362.88 

100.83 

12.80 

245. 12 

101.63 

162.6.3 

IS.:!1 

202.50 

171.-48 

26,458.0S 

14,61'.5S 

3,059.43 

(0.35) 

(5.75) 

.).OS).33 

11.S74.25 

127 

(0.32) 

/24.25) 

(23.30) 

1818.46 

(457.67) 

(2,410.93) 

COtt.78 

(4.&3.36) 

1466.66) 

11. 107.59 

4J..9S 

43.95 

wangln 

Chairman &. MalU,sil1l Director 

DIN·01377212 

1·1,0·11 "!l' 

UN! 

14.1 hh 

UR 7,. 

1O.IOb 

34,827.57 

1700 

34.&64.57 

22,O.~2 .0.l 

IOt'.tl2 

l 'Ut! 

(f>.I5.'12) 

174.0.' 

171 <10 

17 Q7 

Il:!".l 

H"".11 

22,134.11 

12,130.4f) 

2A25 .. i'I 

"" 2-'710 

2.b64.~ 

10,066.31 

.,. 
(1.20) 

43.69 

(M2) 

40..15 

(:;'44 60) 

18740 

526.5<1 

(lJ2.& 11 

I1n.9Z) 

1122.0171 

9,943.90 

38.2;1 

38.21 



REC Limited 
Registered Olfiu· Core· ... SCOPE Cgmple>e. 7.lodhi Road. New Delhi ·110003. CIN: U010ID11969GOl005095 

Consolid~ted Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st December 2024 

PARTICULARS Period ended )l·11-10U 

H jnt. ·ro . .... ) 

Period ended 31-·12-2023 

A. Cash Flgw frDm Optn.ring Activitie.: 

Net Profit before Tu 

Adjustment. for: 

I. lo!O.~ (Galnl on dereoognition o f Proptrty. Plant and Equipment {net) 

2. L~" ICOlI Ion derecOgllition of Asseb held for 30lle fN() 

3. Dtprtci~tion.c. AmOfbubon 

... Imp..tirmenl .allow.mceon Auets C1.aWfM!d -'S Hekt for 5.I'e 

5. Impairn't'lli tOlt.<;ts on Finotncialln~t,umtnt" 

6. lol;sI {C<I nl on Fdir Vdlue Ch.1ln8t>li (net) 

7. Effecti"e In leresl Rolle {EIR) in r~ptcl of loan Assets .t4od Rorrowlllgs 

8. Interest e"pense on mcOlTte 101" of eot,lIer yeolr 

9. Inlertst on CommerCliit Paptr 

10. Interttol Accrued on 2no COUpori Rends 

II Unreotlistd FOf"eign E~cfI ;lIngeTrottls~t1on l.o!;..;J{G<lin) 

12, liabililits/P'o\·j"ion" ",riUen b;lC"k 

13. Intertst on Invtstments &: other" 

Oper,1lting profit before Changes in Operating Assels .c. Liabilities 

Inllow I (OutRow) on account of: 

I. LOO1n A!'«oClS 

2. Der.,·ali'·n 

J. Diller Fin"ncWl and Non· FIfl"ndal "s..o;el.~ 

4. Olher Financioll and Non- Financial U<lbil tie" & Pro,' 

C."h 1I0w from Oper.tionl 

I . Income Tu: PolK! (indudlng TDS) 

Net Cuh Flgw from Oper.!in, Ac;tiviliel 

B. Cnh Flow froD! 'n"n1in8 Acti';ti« 

I. Solie of Property. Plotnt &I £quipmef'll 

2. S~e of M;:r.e!1i held ror s.-Ie 

l. Im·estmenlln Property. 1'1,101" EqUipment (ind CWIP .. Cdpit~1 A,:h-.. nc~l 

... Investment In lnt.mgible A~sets (including Inlolngible oIlNl, under devl:'lQpm"nt 
&: Capital Ad,· .. nce,,) 

~ Fin,lI'lce Costs C.lpilollised 

6. S.akl (Im'elliment)m Equity Sh.,~ 

7 Redemption! (Innslmenl) in High Quolhty liquid A~ts (HOLAs) (net) 

8. Redemptionl (Investment) In Debt SC'C"r IIts other Ih"n HQLAIi (net) 

9. 5.lle/(lm·estment) oMn sholres of oIssod.,lt".k.ubsi.Ji,uy f • ."omp.mt ... INI:'I) 

10. Inter.~tlncome from in\'e~lment~ 

11. Mdluril!"lIIn\'estmenl) of/in Corpor,lle.and Term deposits 

Net Cuh flow trom Investing Activiti" 

C. ~sh Aow hom fin.ncin, Activities 

1. Ilt~tI (Redemption) of Rupee Debl Strou ties (nttl 

2. Issuel (Redemption) of Commerci.11 P.lptr (neU 

3. Raising! (Rep.),menls) of RupeeTttm lOolns/ WCDL irom R.mktl FI~ Inet ~ 

4. RolislOg! (Rep-'ymenls) of Foreign C"rrenc!, Debt Securihes lind Horrowings (Ilel) 

S. RoIislOgI (Redemption) 01 Subo,..Hn.lled U"bililies (neO 

6. P.yment of I)i,·idend on Equil)' Sh.,es 

7 Rep"ymmt towolrds Least U"bility 

Net Cash 1I0w from Fin;llncin, Activltiu 

Nel'ncreuelDecreue in C;IIsh &: Cuh Equiv"lents 

kash« Co1sh Equ ivalents as at the beginning of the period 

Cdsh .c. C"sh Eq uiv.lienlli dS o\llh. end oi Ihe j)efioJ 

14.627.58 

, .. 
(6 03) 

18.20 

-
257.21 

(36·t64} 

150,·f) 

0,3" 

,,-" 
(J.S40.66} 

(05-1} 

(38.33) 

13.150.53 

1S6,2 .. 9Ml 

~U.·I) 

f lA74 IO} 

S.03H5 

(39.632.451 

C3.157.98) 

(3.98) 

6 ,07 

(51 SO) 

(~OS) 

(201) 

(1.428.28) 

35115 

13.2b 

24.34 

(93.07) 

27,20735 

('U'8-1.36) 

JOsn 11 

(3,29153) 

{42.790.t31 

0184.06) 

"5."08.57 

1,0134.08 

(01.681 

1.429.40 

12.730.-'& 

3." 
(132) 

17 97 

(0.09) 

(6-15.921 

(336731 

(7.77) 

HXt47 

(592 )oi l 

r2 -161 
(:!5.311 

11.240.74 

(63.oBl.85) 

J5MS 
(897.65) 

3.651.06 

148,732.25) 

(2,48707) 

0 .07 

1.61 

(18.19) 

(0.321 

3.'" 
(498.00) 

(48259) 

(6.58) 

36.01 

20,978.51 

2,8-19.37 

11.286.51 

20.889.SQ 

"".00 
tl,857.0$) 

(0.02) 

(51,219.32) 

53.737,27 

1.553.30 

(38.89) 

1.51Ul 

l.flU8 1,553.30 

Mace:Delhi 

D;N~: 06th hbrw.ry 20lS 

/J <v '"'-'::!.!!! / 1'~ _ 
(f~D~o~ < ,) I 

7'" * * Vi\'ek Kumar w.n",n 

~ U "irman"M"mlpngDirKtoJ 

1/"" ~\ DIN - Duron 
~w De'" 



R£C 1.imited 
Regist.red Office - Core-4, SCOPE Compltlf" 7, Lodhi Road, N.w Delhi -110003, CIN: l40IOtDll969GOIOOS095 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December 2024 

A Equity lUre capital 
g mCrorf$ 

Putkulars M;l131-12-2024 AJ al 31-03-2024 
IJAl;lftCe ~ the ~nniftJ of the period 2.633.22 2,W.U 

OIng~ in eq\lity share capital during the period" 

~al.an" allhe md of Ih. 2.633.-" 2,633.22 
- --

IJ hutnunrnls tRlinl, equity ill albrr 
(~ in Crores 

P.vtinalan As aI31-12-2124 At al31-03-2024 

Balan";l1 the brsinnin& of Ihr period "M. ...... 
Ch.'\fIgt"5 in in~runll'rlts rntil'l'ly equity in n.HUrt' durin~ the period 
lal .. nce allh ... rnd ol Ihe period 558.40 " .... 

C Other Equity 
(~inCroTt'51 

PartiruJ;us Reser>'" 6; • hts 5hareofOthrr FVOCI- Effective Costs 01 Total 

Special Rrserve R_rvtfor SIOItutory SKurion Capital forrisn Grneral Imp,linnrnl R.Wned Comprrh.n.ivr Equity romon of HedpnJ 
CftuedMh)M1) ~adaad RrMrvelJlt~ Premi.m 

,_. 
(umlley ....... lteM",r Earninp 1nc.1'NI Oosf) of Tn"",menls Cash Flow ~ .... 

(viii) ollh. doubtful IColR_rve Attount Monetary Joinl Venture Hedsn 
IliromrTu:Att. debts w. IJMilof ladia II~ IIftOGnted ft,r 

"" 36(l)(viia) of Act. 1934 TfI.nsbotion usinJ~uily 

lbe (licome OiffrrrllCl! _bod 
Tax Ad, 1961 Accounl 

lJalane:. _ allb! Ma",1!. 202.l 24.m.M &.025.15 U71-" mo.41) 12,,036.21 10,.)1l.76 (tOU?) .... 05 n.10'l.871 S4.m.90 

"'0111 lo t Ih ... period 10.066.17 ' 0.066~~ 

Krml"olSU~1 04 Ori'ined tkonetil P\;ms '-'" ,,. 
Rt.'Cognilion through Olher Comprehen~l\'e . . .~.S, CW.lJtI :t1)4 ~8 ( 126..Q"i) 

In(orne (...et of 1OI1l~) 

Tolal Comprrhensive Incom. for the period 10-069_95 ,..87 (557.20) '94.23 9,143.90 

I-rr~nsk-r~ IroJ {lroml tl.etalOl'd E.lmlng,." 2.286 8..' 'iO'I.4~ :!.OOl12. , • • 79l 98\ 

Transferred to (,ene-ral Rl"!;('rvr 

Iolt'\'L~slfi.'allon of .. m! (1055) M w~1 (\06) "" t"~tingui shment of FVOCI eqUIty l05trumt"n1 (Ill'! 

Clf taxes) 
Fort'lgn Curl't"llC)' Transl.lt lOn Lo5s (1(Ilonll. I('rm . tHUS) . mll!l 

m(\nt!taty items during the period 

Arnor1is.lhon during th t period 1%.26 
,,.2lI 

COUpc>fl payment on In~trumenl Entirely Equity . . . . . . 
in Nature W~I DI.>b1 In Slrumenl~) (Net of 

T,U6) 

SIIb-Tot .. 1 = ... , SOU3 2.011.12 M,o.l t4.798.ot) ,.06 . 8<." 
Utlli~ for k~Ut' of Konu~ Equity Sh,ll'E"S . . . 
Expen_ mrurrr:d 0f'I isWl1' e>f 1SOf'IU'i f.quily . . 
~3~ 

Oidden<k C2.1l~7.C6) (::!.Et.va" 

SIIb-tolaJ· TriUlNmon wilh owners (2,851.05) . fU57.'" 

IJlla~ H al 31Jt l>eftmbrr lJ23 - - __ 21""" '.4.4' 10,Q1~ 1,577S3 mUll 12,036.28 12.128.64 1S9.541 42.8S (UIIS9 62.099.7! 



Puticlilbus 
leserve$ " Surplu. 

Spedlll Reserve Reserve for SllltutOry Sealrioes CllpitllJ foreign 
<:r'elltrd uJ, 36(1) Blld llnd Rnerve uil4 Premium Rnerve Currency 

(viii) of the doubtful IC of Reserve A«'1)unt Monetary 
InCOlne Tax Act. debtsuls Bmk of Indill It ... 

'96' 36(1)(viwof Act. 1934 Tr;msboon 
Ihelncome Difference 

TllX Act. 1961 Accounl 

BllIance U lll311t March 2024 28,044.83 687.76 to,m.w 1.577.53 (675.14) 
Profit for Ihe period 

Remea~uremenl of Defined Benefil P[an~ 

Recognition through Other Comprehen~i\·c 

Inrome (nel of taxeli) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Transferred 10/ (from) Relained Earnings 2,662.64 6.~2.12 2.295.40 
Reclassificalion "' gainl (loss) 00 salel · 
e>dinguishment of FVOCI equity instrument (nel 

oft~Kes' 

FO"'Sfi Currency Trimslalion ~ on long lerm 
monetary ilems during the period 

· (1.1(11<;) 

Amorhsallon during the pt.'riod · l~q.85 

Coupon p.lyment on Instrumenl Entirely Equily · 
in Nature (Perpt.'tual Debl Inslrumenls] {Nel of 

Taxeli ' 
Sub·tubi 2,662.64 632.12 2.295.40 (0.30) 
Dividends . 
Sub-Total· Tl"illn~on with OWDef'II . 
BllI~nce as at 31st December2024 30,707.47 1.319.88 13.124.39 1.577.53 (675.44) 

Place;Dt'lhi 

Ollie: 06th februry 202S 

Shaft of Other fVOCI-
GeneroU hnpllinnent Rewnrd Comprehl!DSive Equity 
Rnerve Reserve E;unings Incomel 0055) of InSbuments 

Joint Venture 

a«'OUnted for 
using equity 

method 

1<036.2B 13,812.65 (57.99) 

11.514.25 
0.'15 

(2~,2.:;) 

11.575.20 /24.25) 

,..,.". (6.34(1.16) 

. 

. 

75M' (6.340.16) 
(.~.2q l.:\'l) 

(3,291.53) 
12,786.28 . 15,816.16 (82.24) 

(~in Crores) 
Effective C05tsof Tolal 
Pomon of Hrdging 

Cuh flow reserve 

Hod!!" 

(1,846.93) 1.690.64 

D60.79 (1,S04.15) 

1.360.7'9 0.804.15) 

. 

(486.14 1113.51 

4:y 
Vivek KUlruir Dew~npn 

Chainnan" MllDaging Director 
DIN · 01377212 

66,158.61 

11,574.2.'> 
O.q~ 

/467.(1) 

11,107.59 

[l4(1 , I ~) 

t~A~ 

(0.30) 

(~.291 .\1} 

(3.291.53) 

73,914.38 



REC Limited 

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003 

CIN: L4010lDL1969GOlOO5095 

Notes to Accounts 

1. Company Overview 

REC Limited ("REC" or the "Company" or the "holding company") was incorporated in the yc.1r1969. 

The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal 

place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-ll0003, India. The books of 

accounts are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. 1-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, 

in addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, 

mainly in the State Capitals and one training centre at Hyderabad. 

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance across the 

power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non­

Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Being an NBFC, the 

company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India. 

The company has been accorded with the status of a 'Maharatna' Central Public Sector Enterprise by 

the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance. 

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are 

interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and 

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. During FY 2022-23, REC has also diversified into 

the Non-Power Infrastructure sector comprising Roads & Expressways, Metro Rail, Airports, IT 

Communication, Social and Commercial Infrastructure (Educational Institution, Hospitals), Ports and 

Electro-Mechanical (E&M) works in respect of various other sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc. 

The group is also engaged through its subsidiaries in engineering consultancy services. Ministry of 
Power, Government of India/State Government, allocates independent transmission projects from time 
to time to the Company to work as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC), for selection of developers as 
Transmission Service Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process (TBCB). In 
order to initiate development of each such transmission projects, RECPDCL incorporates a project 
specific SpeCial Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company and after the selection of 
successful bidder through TBCB process notified for transmission projects, the respective project 
specific SPY along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to the successful bidder. 

RECPDCL is providing consultancy and fee based service in the areas of rural electrification, AT&C loss 
reduction strategies, IT implementation work including setting up of data Centre, customer care centre, 
etc. with GIS integration, Implementation of Smart Grid projects covering Smart metering with AMI, 
Construction of Solar PV Plants, SCADA implementation MRI/AMR based meter reading & billing 
works, DPR preparation & project management Consultancy for power Distribution Projects, 
Strengthening work of Power Distribution, Energy efficiency projects and Quality & Quantitative 
Surveillance/Inspection of the works executed. 

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 

Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The Com any together with its subsidiaries is hereinafter referred to as 'the Group'. 



2. Basis of Preparation 

These Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose or 

inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the group and complies 

with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indi"n 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 20n ,1J)d 

other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including those issued by RBI. These finJnci,,1 

statements for the period ended 31st December 2024 were authorized and approved by the Board of 

Directors on 06th February 2025. 

3. Material Accounting Policies 

The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as 

given below: 

3.1 Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary is the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over 

the investee, is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of 

subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control 

commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group combines the financial statements of the 

holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 

income and expenses. 

Equity accounted investees 

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and joint 

venture. 

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity, over which the Company has significant 

influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in associates are 

accounted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at cost, which includes 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the 

Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-accounted investees 

until the date on which significant influence ceases. However, in case where it is assessed that the 

investment/ interest in associates is held for sale, the interest in associates is accounted for under Ind AS 

105. 

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets 

of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interests in jOint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost 

which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements 

include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity­

accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 



3.2 Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra ­

group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted 

investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the inve~tcc. 

Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that here is 

no evidence of impairment. 

3.3 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual 

system of accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liJbilities 

which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies have been 

applied consistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional 

currency of the Group. 

3.4 Income recognition 

Interest income 

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs 

and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest 

inclucling interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for 

credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the 

complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including 

interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)/lnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code 

(IBC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery 

thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any. 

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 

rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on 

an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately 

under the head interest income. 

As a matter of prudence, income on credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or 

on accrual basis when expected realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding. 

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest 

amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the 

corresponding interest income. 

Income from Governme1l1 schemes 



Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on the basis of the services rendered .lnd 

amount of fee sanctioned by the Ministry of Power. 

Dividend income 

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account Oil 

accrual basis when right to receive payment is established. 

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as estnblished 

only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised 

separately under the head 'Dividend Income'. 

Rental Income on Investment Property 

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Other services 

Feesl charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on 

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Group in the year of receipt. 

Revenue from sale of sel''lIices 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 

and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

The Group uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and when 

revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. In 

accordance with the same, revenue is recognised through a five-step approach: 

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer; 

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract; 

(iii) Determine the transaction price; 

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and 

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied. 

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts 
and other indirect taxes. 

In Cost Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures 

plus proportionate margin as per contract; 

In Fixed Price Contracts - Revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The 

Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total time 

expected to complete the performance obligation to that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period, 

which is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance 

obligations under Ind AS 115. 

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances 

change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss 

in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management. 



Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put 

on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the llltim"t~ 

collection of the professional charges will be made. 

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective Spy rond "Ie 

proceeds of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accol...,ted "' 

income of the Group. 

3.5 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection "viti, the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or constnlction 

of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use, are 

capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its 

intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the 

effective interest rate method. 

3.6 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period. 

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.7 Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re­

measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in 

the consolidated financial statements before 01" April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a 

"Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account" and amortized over the balance 

period of such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods. 

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated 

using the exchange rates at the transaction date). 

3.8 . Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Land 

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined, 

related carrying amounts are not amortized. 



Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classlfil'd ~s 

finance lease and is amortized over the lease term. 

Other tangible assets 

PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or constructlon cost, including .. lny ,,-"osts 

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be cap"blc o( 

operating in the manner intended by the Group's management. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will How to 

the Group beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Sta tement o( 

Profit and Loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, use/ullives, residual value, and impairment) 

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmen t losses. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the lIseful life of the a ssets as 

prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

DepreCiation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in lise 

(or more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided (. 

100%. 

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial 

year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

De-recognition 

An item of PPE and any Significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ariSing on de­

recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital Work-in -Progress 

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress.' The 

cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable 

cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances pa id for the acquisition/ construction of PPE 

which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under 'Capital Advances.' 

3_9 Investment property 

Recognitioll and measurement 

Investment property are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 



accumulated impairment loss, if any. The depreciation is charged on straight-line method over till' 
useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Derecognition 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when th.,y Me 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their dispo~JI. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recogn ised in 
profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

Reclassification tolfl"OlII investment pl"Operty 

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers 
between investment property and owner-occupied property do not change the carrying amount of the 
property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure 
purposes. 

Fair vallie disclosure 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an 
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent 
experience in the relevant location and category of the investment property being valued. 

3.10 Intangible assets 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable that the 

future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the Group. 

Subsequent measurement (alllortization method, useful lives and residual value) 

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 

useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may 

be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the 

useful life of intangible assets to be five years. 

Intangible Assets ,mder Development 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as 

'Intangible assets under development' till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the 

acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are 

classified under 'Capital Advances'. 

Derecognition of Intangible Assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses ariSing from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

3,11 Lease accounting: 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former 

operating leases except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease. 



The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined .l ~ 

'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for" period 

of time in exchange for consideration'. 

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which ore 

whether: 

the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or 

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group 

the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the 

contract 

the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The 

Group assess whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is used 

throughout the period of use. 

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the 

balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of 

the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle 

and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease 

commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

The Group depreCiates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement 

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The 

Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 

payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is 

readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be 

payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be 

exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for 

interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in­

substance fixed payments. 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use 

asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. 

3.12 Assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is considered 

as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Group; are available for 

immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price and the sale has 

< . 



been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such as'et ..... e 

measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. 

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and Me nut 

depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it cI,lssific' 

investment in the entity (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held for sale. 

3.13 Financial Instruments 

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financi~ll 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Initial recognition and measu,.eme,,1 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 

transactions costsl except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are medsured 

initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described 

below. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of finan cial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories 

upon initial recognition: 

• Amortized cost 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review for impairment at least 

at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to each 

category of financial assets, which are described below. 

Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the 

follOWing conditions are met: 

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to 

collect contractual cash flows; and 

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Impairment Allowance (expected credit loss) is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost. 

Modificatioll of cash flows 

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the 

renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Group 

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss 

in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present 



value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financi,,1 "" ers 

original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 

financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortized cost 

c1assification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions .i.lnd drc 

designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this 

category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 

accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or 

losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by 

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation teclmique where no active market exists. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host 

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 

a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise 

would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign 

exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to 

a party to the contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at 

fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts 

or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for 

trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at 

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 

instruments. 

Financial assets at FVOCl 

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment 

classified as FVDCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are 

recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVOCI reserve within equity, 

except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such gains 

and losses from DCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment. 

However, the Group may transfer the same within equity. 

De-recognition of financial assets 

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset such as a loan to a customer, when the tenns and conditions 

have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference 

recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been 

recorded. 

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to 

from the financial asset have expired, or when the 



substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Group also derecognizes the financial .\Sset if 

it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

Classification and sIIbseqllent measllrement of finallcialliabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 

except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequ'>ntly at 

fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, slIch an 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 

or loss. 

Hedge accollnting 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements: 

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument 

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic 

relationship 

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the 

hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity 

actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair 

value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is 

effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in 

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification 

adjustment within other comprehensive income. 

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge 

relationship, in accordance with the Group's risk management objective and strategies. The 

documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s) 

being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness 

requirements. 

Fair Vallie Hedges 

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of 

Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is 



ceases to exist. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised imrrlediatl'iy 

in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.14 Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 

The Group follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECI .) 

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below: 

• Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. 

• Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL 

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default 

and Loss Given Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its 

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default 

occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be 

lost post recoveries in case of a default. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest 

accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. 

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PO, EAD 

and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. 

Financial assets other than Loans 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has 

increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since 

initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. 

To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at 

the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial 

recognition. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available 

without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial 

recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly 

since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet 

date. 

Write-offs 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped 

pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority. 



A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement aeli vitics to 

financial assets written off! may assign / sell loan exposure to ARC / Bank / a financial institution for" 

negotiated consideration. 

Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement activities are recorded in statement of profit and 

loss. 

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short­

term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible 

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.16 Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity 

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in 

equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders' meeting and the Board of 

Directors respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are 

recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Group. 

3.17 Material prior period errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the 

prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period 

presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are 

restated. 

3.18 Prepaid Expenses 

A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition. 

3.19 Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is 

recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in ocr or 

directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable income. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to 

apply to their respective period of realization, prOVided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 



enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority. 

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax _"set is 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred t"x 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer prob"ble 

that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in 

profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 

income or equity, respectively. 

3.20 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as " p"id 

annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non­

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution 

plans as under: 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions in respect of the 

employees into a separate fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further 

contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the Group towards 

defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the contributions 

relate. 

Defined benefit plan 

The Group has an obligation towards Gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF), Provident 

Fund (PF) and Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit 

plans covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will 

receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service, final salary, and other 

defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan assets for 

funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. 

The Group's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit 

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The 

liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of 

the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. 

Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. 
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Actuarial gainsflosses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Other long-tenn employee benefits: 

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one­

year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an 

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined. 

Loan to employees at concessional rate 

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction 

value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the 

unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected 
• 

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis. 

3.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 

past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and 

amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions 

are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most 

reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with 

the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money 
is material. 

A contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confinned only by future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 
be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Group can be Virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the 

obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not 

exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the 
related asset is disclosed. 

3.22 Fair value measurement 



Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measuremen t is b.ht~d 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabili ty 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset ttlkes 

into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 

level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements regularly, the 

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is material to the fa ir value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.23 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3.24 Business Combination under Common Control 

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same 

party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory. 

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using 

the pooling of interest method as follows: 



• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. 

Adjustments are made only to harmonise material accounting policies. 

• The financial infonnation in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is res tated .IS if 

the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the 

financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination 

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor i< 

aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. 'Ihe 

identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the 

transferee 

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional 

consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is 

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves. 

3,25 Expenditure on issue of shares 

Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account. 

4. Implementation of New/ Modified Standards 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind AS. 

The Group has analysed the impact of these amendments, which is not material to the Group. Further, 
MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company. 

5. Material management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty 

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make 

judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 

and liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on 

historical experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates. 

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future 

periods if it affects both current & future periods. 

Material management judgments 

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 

is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax 

assets can be utilized. Further, the Management has no intention to make withdrawal from the SpeCial 

Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the 

special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the Group does not 

create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve. 

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies - The 



historical information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, the Company does not expect 

any tax liability on the undistributed reserves of the Group Companies, as and when such resel·ves ,He 

distributed. Hence, the Company does not create any deferred tax liability on undistributed reserves of 

Group Companies. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Investment in SPVs - Transmission projects are managed as per the mandate from Government of 

India and the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these projects 

unilaterally. The Group therefore considers its investment in respective SPVs as associates having 

Significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital. 

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired loans - As a matter of prudence, income on 

credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or on accrual basis when expected 

realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding. 

Material estimates 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the 
utility of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may materially impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation tedmiques to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In 
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it 
is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, level 2 & level 3 hierarchy is used 
for fair valuation. 

Income Taxes - Material estimates are involved in determining the provIsiOn for income taxes, 
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of 
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset. 

Expected Credit loss ('ECl') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial 
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions 
about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and 
resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected 
credit loss to estimate ECl: 

• Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk; 

• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 

product/ market and the associated ECl; and 

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL. 

• Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in 

ult) 



6 Cash .and C.ash Equivalents 

(~IIl( I'Ifl' "", • 
Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As "131-03-2024 

- Cash on Hand (including impresU 0.09 002 

- Balances with Banks 

- in current accounls 386.82 6765 
- depo~its with original maturity of 3 months or less 1,045.72 IY51JH 

Total 1,432.63 262.75 

7 Bank Balance. (other than Cash .and Cuh Equivalenls) 

(f III ( rnrn ) 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As al 31-03-2024 

- Earmark.ed Balances with Banks 

- for unpaid dividends 7.68 1. 192.72 

- for Government funds for onward disbursement as grant 340.52 t19.55 

- E.armarked T enn Deposits 

- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.71 1167 

- Balances with banks not available for use pending allotment of 54EC Capital 210.21 1,2-15.41 

Gain Tal{ ElCemption Bonds 

-Olher Tenn deposits 295.06 1':1140 

Total 854.18 2,699.75 



8 Derivative Financial Instruments 

(i) 

eii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

eii) 

(iii) 

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held fll r ris!.: Ill.m.l~l·nwnl 

purposes include hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under the hedge a~~ounting re\luirement~ , If 11I....t~l·S Ih.lt .trt' 

economic hedges. 1he table belo\\' shows the fair values of derivative linancial instruments reeorded a ll ~ts or liab ililit,s h~" tht'r wilh 

their notional amounts. 

Part I 
(ti llCr r ) II I'S 

Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 3'1-03-2024 

Notional Fair Value- Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- r:.ir Value-

Amounts Assets liabilities Amounts Assets liabilities 

Currency Derivalives -
- Spot and forwards 4,017.01 33.79 . . -
- Currency swaps 3,210.87 167.49 11 .79 3.12".52 43.34 3R.13 

-Others 

- Seagull Options 1.51,512,56 15,396.113 610.23 1.21 .107.24 11,070.97 411.H2 

Sub-total (i) 1,58,740.44 15,598.11 622.02 1,24,233.76 t1~114.31 HIJ.9S 

Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 95,%UJ6 1,379.12 25756 n ,128.13 1,3(17.71 3()9.75 

Sub-total (il) 95,964.06 1,379.12 157.56 72,128.13 1,367.71 309.75 

Other deriv .. tives 
- Reverse cross currency swaps - - -
Tot .. 1 - Derivative FinanciallnstTUments (i + ij+iii) 2.S4,7()4.50 16,977.23 879.58 1,%,361.89 12,482.02 759.70 

Part II 

hlcluded in Part J are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes. as below: 

on n IH 'S 

P .. rticulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31~O3-2024 

Notion .. 1 Fair Value- Fair Value - Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-

Amounts Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities 
Fair Value Hedging 

- Interest Rate Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 13,995.70 7.85 18449 15,950.70 - 291.73 
Sub-tot .. 1 (i) 13,995.70 7.85 184.49 15,950.70 297.73 

Cash Flow Hedging 

- Currency Derivatives 
- Spot and Forw.lrd 4,017.01 33.79 - - -
- Currenq' Swaps 3,210.87 167.49 11.79 3,12b.52 43 . .34 38.13 
- Others 

- Seagull Options 1.51,512.56 15,396.82 610.23 1,21,107.2-1 1l,070.96 411.g2 
- Interest R;IIte Derivatives 

- Forward Rate Agre<ements and Interest Rate Swaps 75,268.36 981.02 73.07 49,477.H 905.30 12.02 
Sub·total (ii) 2,34,008.80 16,579.12 695.09 1,73,711.19 12,019.60 461.97 

Undesignated Derh'atives 6,700.00 390.25 6.700.00 462.42 . 
Total - Derivative Fin,\nci .. llnsfTumenfs fj+ii+iii) 2,54,704.50 16,977.23 879.58 1,96,361.89 12,482.02 759.70 



9 Rec:einbles 

(il 

(ii) 

(iii) 

II 
(i) 

Partkulan 

Trade Rec:eiv.1lbles 

Unsecured, Considered good 

less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Trade receivables which have significant increse in credit risk 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Credit impaired receivables 

less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Sub-Tolal-I (i+ii+iii) 

Other Reuivables 

Unsecured, Considered good 

Less; Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 

Sub·Total-1I (i) 

Total Receivables (1+11) 

(~ III Cfnrc~\ 

As at 31-12-2024 As at 31·03-2024 

139.64 115.13 

(3.92) (8.83) 

135.72 106.30 

73.92 58.90 

(19.99) (16.58) 

53.93 42.32 

72.55 66AO 

(67.95) (61.20) 
4.60 5.20 

194.25 153.82 

6.02 3.70 

6.02 3.70 

6.02 3.70 

200.27 157.52 



10 Loans 
1he Company has categorised aliloalls al Amortised Cost in accordance with the requiremtnls ol lnd AS 109. 

IA) 

(i) 

(ii) 

IB) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

IC)II 

(i) 

(ii) 

) 

IClIII ) 

Particulars 

loans 

Tenn loans 
Working Capital Tenn loans 

less: Impairment loss allowance 

Security Details 

Secured by tangible assets 
Covered by Covenunent Guarantees 
Unsecured 

less: Impairment loss allowance 

Loans in India 

Public Sector 
Private Sector 

less: Impairment loss allowance 

Loans outside 'ndia 
less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total (AI - Gross Loans 

Total CA) - Net Loans 

Tolal (8) • Cross Loans 

Total (8) • Net Lo.ns 

Total (C)(I) • Cross Loans 

Total (C)(I) - Net Loans 

Total (C)m) - Net Loans 

Total (CUI) and IC)(II) 

As at 31-12-2024 

Principal Dis Amortised Cosl 

5,02,.594.16 5,05,205Al 

63.025.88 63,412.92 

5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 

(10.880.04) (10.880.04) 

5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

2,65,195.67 2,65,877.18 

2,4S,298.26 2,50,406.04 

52,,126.71 52,.335.11 

5,65,620.64 5.68,618.33 

110,880.1)1) (IO,88MI) 

5.54,740.60 5.57.738.29 

4,98,44HIO 5.01,617.99 

67,176.64 67,000.34 

5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 

(10,880.04) (10.880.04) 

5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

- -
- -
- -

5.54,740.60 5,57,738.29 

(-lill Cr'lIls 

As "131-03-2024 

Principal 0/5 Amorlisl'd Cost 

4,62,090.27 4,11],')75.111 

47,280.61'1 47,5% <J6 

5,09,370.95 5,11,572.57 

(12.380.52) ( 12,31'10.52) 

4,96,990.43 4,99,192.05 

2,47,650.53 2,4H,205.9H 
2,2<,500,49 2,2S.Wl7.H6 

37,219.92 37.J9K72 
$,09,370.95 5,11.572.57 

(12.J80.52) (J2.:wl.52) 

4.96,990.43 4,99,192.05 

4.54,647.OH 4,56,1'194.21'1 
5<,723.87 5-1.67R29 

5,09,370.95 5.11.572.57 
(12,380.52) ( 12,3H(1.52) 

4,96,990.43 4,99.192.05 

- -
-
- -

4.96.990.43 4,99,192.05 



11 Investments 

Particulars Amortised At fair value 

Cosl Through Olher Through profil 

Comprehensive or loss 
Income 

(1) (2l (3) 

As at 31st December, 2024 

Govemment Sel.'Urities 1,615.96 · · 
Debt Securities 3,610.91 · 962.04 

Equity Instruments · 386.40 126.45 

Preference Share:; 28.72 · · 
Total · Gross (Al 5,255.59 386.40 1,088.49 

Inve!'>tmenls oulc;ide India · · · 
Investments in India 5,255.59 386.40 1,088.49 

Total· Gross (8) 5,255.59 386.40 1.088.49 

Total Investments 5,255.59 386.40 1,088.49 

Less: impairment loss allowance (C) (32.10) · · 
Total· Net (D=A·Cj 5,223.49 386.40 1,088.49 

As at 31st March. 2024 

Government Securities 1,624.08 · · 
Debt Serurities 2,176.20 · 1,065.03 

Equity Instrumenl .. · 410.64 76.37 

Preference Shares 28.72 · · 
Total· Gross (A) 3,829.00 410.64 1,141.40 

Invt$tments oulc;ide India · · 
Investments in India 3,829.00 410.64 1,141.40 

Total· Gross (8l 3,829.00 410.64 1.141.40 

Toted Investment .. 3,829.00 410.64 1,141 .40 

Less: impairment loss allowance (C) (28.72) · -
Total- Net (D=A·C) 3,800.28 410.64 1,141.40 

Designiled il 

fair value 

through profit or 

loss 

(4) 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

· 
· 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
-
-

(( in Crores 

Sub-total Others (At Total 

(5= 1+2+3<4) 

1,615.96 

4,572.95 

512.85 

28.72 

6,730.48 
. 

6,730.48 

6,730.48 

6,730.48 

(32.10) 

6,698.38 

1,624.08 

3,241.23 

487.01 

28.72 

5,381.04 
. 

5,381.04 

5,381.04 

5,381.04 

(28.72) 

5,352.32 

Cosl) 

(6) 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

· 
· 

· 
· 
· 

· 
· 
· 
· 
-
-
-

(7- 5+6) 

1,615.96 I 

4,572.95 

512.85 

28.72 

6,730.48 
. 

6,730.48 

6,730.48 

6,730.48 

(32.10) 

6,698.38 

1,624.08 

3,241.23 

487.01 

28.72 

5,381.04 
. 

5,381.04 

5,381.04 

5,381.04 

(28.72: 

5,352.32 

" /' 
~ 
,~ 

'--' 



12 Other financial assets 

The Company has categorised aU the components under 'Other Financial Assets' al Amorhsed Cost in acrordance h'ith lhe requir~rnl'Jlb 01 Ind AS W" 

(A) 

(8) 

(0 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

PaniculiUs 

Lo~ns to Employees 

Advances to Employees 
Recoverable from Holding Company 

Security Deposits 
Advance paid towards variation mngin 

Recoverable from Government of India 

Towards Col Fully Serviced Bonds 
Other amounts recoverable 

Less: Impairment Loss allowance 
Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 

13 Current til" .assets (net) 

Particulars 
AdVolnce Income-tax. &: TDS 

Less: Provision for Income Tax 

TolX lA-posited on income lax demands under contest 

Provision for income tax for demand Wlder contest 

Current tax .1s.sets (Net) 

14 Deferred tax .15setS (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets (NeH 

As ilt 31-12·2024 

Total (A to F) 

As.t 31-12-2024 

Sub-Total (1) 

Sub-Total (2) 

As at 31 -12-2024 

Hill ('ron'" 
A:\ .11 31-03-2024 

75.14 57.'1t, 

1.40 O.'Kl 

o.n 1151 

2.44 1.55 

2:1,653.15 14,)1 1) 40 

353.63 W2 .~~ 

H7.94) (-IO.A!') 

305.69 61.37 

25,D38.5' 24,4011.12 

(~in Cwr,'s 
As at 31-03-2024 

337.28 J(J5A7 

(0.55) (Il.MO) 

316.73 .1O.u~7 

5.20 5.~(! 

(0.25) (II ~S) 

4.95 5.111 
341.68 J09.b8 

H In Crorl'!'i 
As .1f 31-03·2024 

2.655.83 2,500.96 



15 In""tnw,,. Propt'rty 

rutlcubn Opt" ... , Ba1vK~ 

AI .... 31.12.l0U 

Gr{l!l~ Canylng "' .. IlK' 

A«vmll\at,od dc:p'tt .... ionf """"tMion 

Ntl C""Yin, V ....... 

A~ a. 3t.03.2024 

CrussC"'"YIDs Vatu..' 
A<'nlmulatC'd dl'prc<"iationl amortisation 

Nc1 Cany;a, V~ 

16 [>ropert)'. Planl A: Equipawnl,md Intanpblt AsHbo 

rarti(ubn 

rro~rty. rlanl tc EqulpnH'nl 

fn.h<>W Lond lI.if;h ... ,.L/H t-d ",ildi"., r]a"t" f .. mi"' ..... [DI'E .... ,p_ 

... "ipmtftt fi.",_ 

Grc-. 'KI)'ill& nl..,. 
Iu a' :n.03.2013 110.39 I." 4'''.90 20 ... 67.69 2".38 
Addi,i",n." 0)6 1.71 1,71 

l\uTn.wlngs (',1f t Clpllah",,,J 

Disp"'-lls I." l~"'~ 

A.I a'31.12.2023 110.39 15' oU6.90 2(U2 67.71 31.74 

IU at3t.oJl:OU l1D~ U. *sUO lIUS 67.27 3U6 

Additions ~.9S !!.94 

Ron-ow~("os.I (";)pil;l'iS\.'OJ 

DispMO)ls/ Adjuslm,:ms . ~ 4$ 4.02 .. '" 
I'U aI3112.20U nOJ' 1." .sUS 1O.n ".D n .so 

Atru""u!.twd d"prKi;llionlamomsatiotl 

I\s at 3l.0l.2Oll U, It.M 2-" 15.71 18.71 

ChOIrs'" fl" th.: ,n'ol' 0.0] HI 0.''' .. " J .26 

Adjuttmc'flt h" dlSp.O\ak (1).0l) 0.6~ .., 
A~ at 31.12.2023 0.41 20.02 "., 19.65 20.10 

I\s ... 31.D3.2'024 0 .• 1 27.82 '" 'US 20 .... 

C'h.:a'l:" fU'lhI.'rC'olr 00. ~l l 09:- 4 :'\J J.'17 

AJ~t~J~~k '" l.i7 J .o; 

As at 31 12.20101 0.49 31.79 4.49 22.00 ,,-" 

Net block AS .131.03.2024 110J' 1.18 429.08 16.93 47.02 11.sJ 
Nd bJOod: .. ~ 11.12'.2824 110.39 t.IO UHS 15.% "12 11.91 -

Addiliont 

duri~SIh~ ~iII' 

2.46 

1.4." .. , 

Oflic. V .. hiocl ... 

Eq .. i,.... .. 

25.52 0.54 

".:to 0.16 

... ~ 0., 

26.24 0.69 

26.75 0 .11 

,." D,O!! 

S.11 0.41 

",. O.3i 

12.11 0>. 
2.71 0.02 

l.2.'" (0.01) 

12..53 Q..Jl 

12.1' Q..J2 

'" O.DJ .,.. 0.'" ,., 0.09 

U.s6 019 
16.n ". - -

((In\.mn'Sj 

HlHJ MljlafohMnt Cb"" Ba1..nn-
duri~sth~ar 

,,0, 

'" 
101 

. - ------

c " " .... "n,,,., 
C .... itaIWork·in. 1"lanlli"l. ", .. do Olh •• I"L>"lIil,l. 

r .. ,.. .. .. "d" -.. 
O.vtlopm .... t 

ToI~1 1 ...... u"l .. Comp ...... C""'p"1fl .... ..., Sottw~ ... Softw_ 

'09.2' .11 14.72 
lU4 J .72 

D.n .... 
715.611 6.76 14.72 

m.12 23S'I 14.71. 

16.95 32.08 O.D.~ 

>0, 

19.65 
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l' Oth~r non-financi;t} u~ts 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(0) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

Particulars 

Uns~cured, consid~r~d good 

Capital Advances 

Other Advances 

Balances with Govemment Authorities 

Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 

Prepaid fucpen~ 

Deferred Emplo)'ff Cost 
Other Assets 

18 Assets classified as held for sale 

Particulars 
(A) Disposal Group 

(i) Investment in associates 

(ii) Loans to associates 

(iii) Provision for impairment on assets dassified .u held for sale 

Sub-Total (i+ii+iii) 
(8) Assets Classified as Held for Sale-Building 

Total (B) 
Grand Total (A+B) 
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for saJ~ 

(e) Payable to associ<Jtes 

Total (0 

Net Assets held for sale (A+B-O 

As at 31-12-2024 

Total (A to G) 

As at 31-12-2024 

ilmCrtlTl ..... 
As.)t'I-03-21124 

2.64 0. t7 

16.49 JIJJ 
32.31 42..36 

5,34 

29.53 22 .01 

D.ll ISR I 

OJ)I 

104.10 11'.03 

(? in emr ':0.) " 
As.at 31-03-2024 

0,70 0.1)0 

6.20 lq 25 

- -
6.90 20.15 
om f).OS 
0.01 0.05 
6.91 20.20 

-
6.91 20.20 

Assets held for sale as on 31.03.2024 mcludes Rs. 0.01 crore under htigation pendUlg the outcome, the asset I,"annot be re-auctioned (prevIous YC.Ir m]). 



19 Payables 

f ~ III ( 'rorl'" 
Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As .It 31-03-2024 

(A) Trad~ Payabl~8 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.10 0.16 

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 110.27 97.74 

Sllb-total 110.37 97.90 

(8) Oth~r pa)·ables 

Total outstanding dues of rrucro enterprises and small enterprises 2.38 2.H3 
Total outstanding dues other than rrucro enterprises and small enterprises 4.52 H.69 

Sllb-total 6.90 11.52 

Total (A+B) 117,27 109.42 



20 Debt Securities 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(e) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109. 

H in Crorc .. 
P.artirulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 3H)3·2024 

Face! Value! Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost 

Secured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds . . 1,955.00 2,052.46 

54EC Capital Gajn Tax Exemption Bonds 43,489.85 44,534.24 41,110.80 42,5.15.71 

Tax Free Bonds 8,953.27 9,100.45 8,953.27 9,279.X2 

Bond Application Money pending allotment 210.21 210.07 1,245.41 1.244.57 

Sub-total (A) 52,653.33 53,844.76 53,264.48 55,112.56 

Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities 

Institutional Bonds 1,97,381.29 2,04,197.43 1,72,275.29 1,7X,1193.9t1 

Infrastructure Bonds 3.% 9.95 3.96 9.32 

Zero Coupon Bonds 2,753.84 2,747.92 -
Foreign Currency Bonds 28,180.23 28,153.09 32,963.75 32,H47.46 

Sub-total (B) 2,28,319.32 2,35,108.39 2,05,243.00 2,10,950.68 

Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securities 

Commercial Paper - . 
Sub-total (e) - . - . 

Total - Debt Securities (A ... B+C) 280972.65 288953.15 2.58.507.48 266063.24 
Debt Securities issued inJ outside India 
Debt Sec:urities in India 2,52,792.42 2,60,800.04 2,25,543.73 2,33,215.78 
Debt Sec:urities outside India 28,180.23 28,153.09 32,963.75 32,847.46 

Total - Debt Securities 2,80,972.65 2,88,953.15 2,58,507.48 2,66,063.24 

Refer Note No. 21 .2 for reconciliation between the figure represented in Face Value and Amortised Cost 

21 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

(A) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(B) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

The Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the rt.'quirl'mcnts of IIlt.1 

AS 109. 

a in Crorcs 
Particulars As.t 31-12-2024 As at 31·03-2024 

PrincipalO/s Amortised Cosl PrincipalO/s Amortised Cost 

Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings 

Term Loans from Banks 48,377.85 48,560.77 50,612.28 50.620.49 

Term Loans from Financial Institutions 4,550.00 4,550.00 8,050.00 8.072.29 

Term Loan in Foreign Currency 88,000.01 87,794.17 67,205.64 66,772.31l 

Term Loans from Govemment of India (NSSF) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12 

Sub-total (A) 1,50,927.86 1,51,027.25 1,35,867.92 1,35,790.28 

Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings 

FeNR (8) Loans 42,879.14 42,886.95 25,138.67 25,151.29 

Short Term Loans/loans repayable on demand from Banks 7,526.00 7,537.68 10,875.94 10,883.04 
Overdrafts! Cash Credit repayable on demand from Banks 3.22 3 .22 267.44 267.44 

Sub·total (B) 50,408.36 50,427.85 36,282.05 36,301.77 

Total· Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (A to B) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

BOlTowings (other than Debt Securities) in! outside India 

Borrowings in India 1,13,336.21 1,13,660.93 1,04,944.33 1,05,319.67 
Borrowings outside India 88,000.ot 87,794.17 67,205.64 66,772.38 

Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05 

Pltast reftr Note No. 21.2 for rtcotlcl/ultlOn between the figure represtllted m Face Va/lit' an,t AmortIsed Cost 



22 Subordinated Liabilities 

The Company has categorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Inti AS 11)9. 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Particulars 

175th Series· Subordinate Tier·II Bonds· 

8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029 
199th Series· Subordinate Tier·IJ Bonds· 

7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030 
222nd Series· Perpetual Tier·I Bonds· 

7.98% with call option on 30.04.2033 and on annual anniversary 

date thereafter 
226th Series· Perpetual Tier-I Bonds· 

8.03% with call option on 30.09.2033 and on annual anniversary 

Total· Subordinated Liabilities 

Subordinated Liabilities in! outside India 

Borrowings in India 

Borrowings outside India 

Total· Subordinated Liabilities 

As at 31-12-2024 

Face Value Amortised Cost 

2,151.20 2,257.09 

1,999.50 2,025.23 

2,000.00 2,105.17 

1,090.00 1,111.04 

7,240.70 7,498.53 

7,240.70 7,498.53 

- -

7,240.70 7,498.53 

(~ in Crorcs) 
As at 31-03-2024 

Face Value Amortised Cost 

2,151.20 2,U9 J .9!l 

1,999.50 2,041.611 

2,000.00 2,145.2H 

1,090.00 I,D3.3M 

7,240.70 7,412.21 

7,240.70 7.412.21 

-
7,240.70 7,412.21 



23 Other Financial Liabilities 

(A) 

(B) 

Particulars 

Unpaid Dividends 

Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds 

- Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 

- Interest on Bonds 
Sub-total (B) 

Advance received towards variation margin (C) 

(0) Funds Received from Government of India for Disbursement as 
Subsidyl Grant (cumulative) 

Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 

Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries (cumulative) 

Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy! Grant 
(E) 

(F) 

Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Government of India 
Other Liabilities 
Total (A to F) 

24 Current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 
Provision for Income Tax 

Less: Advance Income-tax & TDS 

Current tax liabilities (Net) 

25 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for 
(A) Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 

Earned Leave Liability 

Medical Leave Liability 

Settlement Allowance 

Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 

Long Service Award 

Incentive 

Others 

Sub-total (A ) 

(B) Others 

Expeded Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 

Sub-total (B) 

Total (A+B) 

(~ in CrorL'~ 
As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

7.68 1,192.72 

28.81 22.42 

14.89 10.52 

43.70 32.94 

9,556.32 4,63H.HO 

98,250.12 98,25 1.73 

24.63 24.61 

(97,931.56) (98,202_19) 

343.19 73.95 

24,653.15 24,382.40 

1,732.26 1,619.77 

36,336.30 31,940.58 

(~ in Crorc~ 
As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

- 3,283.80 

- (3,217.34) 

- 66.51 

(~ in Crorc~' 
As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024 

2.58 0.13 
34.54 33.81 

21.80 21.52 

2.40 2.40 

5.97 4.92 

4.90 4.51 

33.72 36.96 

0.80 1.07 
106.71 105.32 

17.63 32.02 
17.63 32.02 

124.34 137.34 
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